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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any l0ss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Prosten
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any Statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement 004
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On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 March
2014.

The past financial year has been very challenging and difficult. The telecommunication industry has been
going through significant structural changes and couple with the impact of the rapid advancement of
technologies changed the overall industry landscape. Our traditional wireless value-added service was
also adversely affected by the unstable market policies from telecommunication operators in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

Apart from strengthening our existing co-operation with China Mobile Limited (“China Mobile"”) through
the wireless music search and MiCu Ringtone projects, the Group will continue to seek growth
opportunities both within our existing business and in new business areas where we can leverage our
competitive advantages to broaden and improve our profitability in the future.

With the recent deployment of 4G technology, the telecommunication operators believe that the future
key revenue driver is dataflow. We are working on a number of solutions aiming to help
telecommunication operators to effectively manage its customers vast dataflow.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere appreciation of the
continuing supports of our shareholders and business partners and also of the contribution and
dedication of our management and dedicated staff .

Yip Heon Keung
Chairman

Hog Kong
23 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEER &

Financial Review

Revenue

During the year, wireless music search services (“"WMS Services”)
remained as the major income stream of the Group. The volatility
and unstable market policies from telecommunication operators
in the PRC brought about most difficult business environment to
the industry than ever. Prosten is not immune to the impact of
the increase in already stringent supervision. Furthermore, for the
past few years, technology has transformed the way we
communicate, in part due to the advent of the Internet to our
mobile phones. The emerging technologies changed the overall
communication mode and habits of end-users. As the industry’s
competitive landscape are going through significant structural
changes, traditional wireless value-added service providers like
us are unavoidably experiencing downward pressure from the
market.

The unexpected market constraints caused a major downturn in
deployment of our products and services which hit an
unprecedented low. Consolidated revenue for the year ended 31
March 2014 was approximately HK$24.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 57.6% over the last year’s revenue of
approximately HK$57.2 million. In previous announcements and
reports, the Group already reported the impacts to the Group’s
financial performance as a result of the prolonged discussion
with a subsidiary of China Mobile for which a new charging
model in relation to the Group's WMS Services via China Mobile
network was made. Such impacts also caused a decrease in the
Group’s revenue.

Cost of sales

As a result of decline in revenue, cost of sales of the Group
decreased from approximately HK$29.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2013 to approximately HK$11.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2014 representing a decrease of approximately
60.1%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENwmEON

Financial Review (continued)

Gross profit margin

During the year, the Group has gradually moved away from
products with less attractive returns with the target to maintain
its gross profit margin. As a result, the Group is able to master an
increase in gross profit margin to about 50.7% in current year.

Other income and gains

During the year, other income and gains amounted to
approximately HK$2.0 million, which was decreased by
approximately HK$0.3 million as compared with that of 2013
(2013: HK$2.3 million). The decrease was due to decrease in fair
value gain on an investment property.

Selling expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2014, as a result of restructuring of
the selling teams and tight control over promotional activities, the
Group's selling expenses decreased by approximately HK$3.7
million to approximately HK$11.4 million (2013: HK$15.1 million).

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses experienced an increase of
approximately HK$1.9 million from approximately HK$38.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2013 to approximately HK$40.1
million for the year ended 31 March 2014. The increase was
mainly due to the impairment made against doubtful debts of
approximately HK$1.3 million and impact of share options issued
in December 2013 which are immediately vested with the
grantees with value of approximately HK$2.0 million.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly represented expenses for research and
development and expenses of other non-operating activities.
Other expenses decreased from approximately HK$5.4 million in
2013 to approximately HK$4.2 million in 2014 which was mainly
due to the decrease in non-operating staff costs during the year
under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENwmEON

Financial Review (continued)

Result for the year

The Group's loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$41.6 million, as compared to a
loss of approximately HK$29.4 million in 2013. The increase was
mainly due to the decrease in revenue.

Total equity

As at 31 March 2014, the total equity of the Group was
approximately HK$10.8 million (2013: HK$49.5 million) and the net
current assets of the Group was approximately HK$0.6 million
(2013: HK$39.4 million) with a current ratio (calculated by dividing
current assets to current liabilities) of 1.0 (2013: 2.1). The decrease
in the total equity, net current assets and current ratio was mainly
due to the loss incurred during the year.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial management
policy. In order to achieve better cost control and minimise the
cost of funds, the Group's treasury activities are centralised and
cash is generally placed in deposits with banks.

During the year under review, the Group mainly financed its
operations by revenue generated from its operations. As at 31
March 2014, total cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
deposits of the Group amounted to approximately HK$12.6
million and HK$0.3 million respectively, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$26.5 million and HK$12.4 million from
approximately HK$39.1 million and approximately HK$12.7 million
as at 31 March 2013. The Group's cash resources was used up to
finance the operations of the Group, while the pledged deposit
was used to fully repaid of the Group's bank loan during the year.
Thus, as at 31 March 2014, the Group's gearing ratio (calculated
by total bank borrowings over total equity) was 0% (2013: 23.0%).
There was no seasonality as to the Group's borrowing
requirements and no committed borrowing facilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENwmEON

Financial Review (continued)

Treasury policies and foreign currency exchange
exposure

As most of the Group's trading transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar, the
impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group was minimal
and there was no significant adverse effect on normal operations.

Cash is generally deposited at banks in the PRC and Hong Kong
and denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar. As at
31 March 2014, no related hedges were made by the Group (2013:
nil).

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2014, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2013: nil).

Significant investments, acquisitions or disposals
There were no significant investments or material acquisitions or
disposals by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2014
(2013 nil).

Capital structure

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 28 March
2000. There was no change of the Company’s capital structure
during the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENwmEON

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had a total of 75 employees
(2013: 112). Total staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2014
slightly increased to approximately HK$28.7 million (2013:
HK$28.1 million) mainly due to the increase in expenses related
to share options granted in December 2013.

The Group's remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees and Directors and the
market condition. In addition to salaries and discretionary
bonuses, employee benefits included medical schemes, pension
contributions, share option schemes and staff training.

Business Review and Outlook

For the 2014 financial year, with the rapid growth of the mobile
internet users, the Group has developed new products during the
year under review. In addition to the provision of existing wireless
music search and entertainment services, we also developed the
application supporting internet and mainstream mobile phone
platforms.

The Mi-Cu Ringtone (Bkif£5%%) is a project aiming at deepening
the cooperation with China Mobile Music Base (b B %% &)= 44
ib). It allows the users to search music, download ringtones and
polyphonic ringtones as well as sharing their music in friend zone
through wireless devices or smart mobiles.

The lottery interaction zone is a fully open lottery community. It
enables lottery users to interact with others by publishing long
articles containing lottery commentaries and analytical
information of lottery on the microblog and helps to form close
relationship between users and lottery types when lottery users
focus on specific types of lotteries. This will help our lottery
website to determine which lotteries users prefer to buy and
provide users with customized contents including lottery
information and bet solutions, allowing the users to obtain more
useful information for placing bets on lottery more accurately.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENwmEON

Business Review and OutlooK (continued)

Meanwhile, the Group will continue its cooperation with China
Mobile on wireless music search projects and will launch a new
operation support project with China Mobile Music Base, which is
designed to enhance the active participation of special members
of China Mobile Wireless Music Base to improve their frequency
and efficiency of use. The members of which have now exceeded
100 million. We will work together with China Mobile Music Base,
put much effort on information collection and conduct innovative
marketing campaign in order to enhance the active participation
of Mi-Cu special members.

With the popularization of the 4G technology, the business focus
of the operators has shifted to dataflow-based business. We are
now proactively developing an application to promote dataflow
consumption and manage dataflow in a reasonable way, whilst at
the same time, actively seeking for opportunities in the
e-commence industry as well as establishing new business
model by integrating the traditional manufacturing corporates
and internet and mobile internet. Our product innovation
capability and extensive operating experience in mobile internet
represents the critical factors for the Group's future success.
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Directors and Senior Management
EELAREEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, aged 44, is the Chairman of the Board and
an executive Director, in charge of the overall corporate strategies
and business development of the Group. He is also the
compliance officer, an authorised representative, a member of
the remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and
the Chairman of the nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) of the Company. Mr. Yip is a graduate of Program for
Management Development from Harvard University and holds a
bachelor degree in electrical engineering from the University
Wisconsin-Madison in the United States of America (“USA"). Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yip worked in a software-consulting firm
as a consultant in the USA. He has been with the Group since
October 1996. Mr. Yip is a son of Mr. Yip Seng Mun, the Group's
former executive Director and a brother of Mr. Yip Heon Ping, an
existing executive Director and Mr. Yip Heon Wai, the former
Chairman of the Group.

Mr. Yip Heon Ping, aged 56, was appointed as an executive
Director and an authorised representative of the Company in
August 2009. He is also a founder of the Group, an executive
Director from March 2000 to June 2007 and the general manager
of the Group from December 1992 to March 2000, in charge of
the Group’s overall management function. Mr. Yip holds a
bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from lowa State
University in the USA. Prior to joining the Group in 1992, Mr. Yip
worked for Hewlett Packard Asia Limited for 10 years. Mr. Yip is a
son of Mr. Yip Seng Mun, the Group’s former executive Director
and a brother of Mr. Yip Heon Keung, the Group's existing
Chairman and Mr. Yip Heon Wai, the former Chairman of the
Group.

Ms. Li Luyi, aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director in
November 2010. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since February 2010 and responsible for overseeing
the daily operations of the Group. Ms. Li holds a bachelor’s degree
in Investment Economics from Shanghai Tongji University in
Shanghai. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Li served as the vice-
president of Kongzhong Corporation, a company listed on
NASDAQ Global Select Market (NASDAQ: KONG) and the vice
general manager of the wireless industry department of TOM
Online Inc. Ms. Li has very extensive experience in the marketing
and business development of wireless value added services
especially in the music-related services, and also has
accumulated years of invaluable experience in the operation and
management of the telecommunications industry in the PRC.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEE

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mah Yong Sun, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in August 2010. Mr. Mah holds a bachelor degree of
science (engineering) in computer science from Imperial College
of Science & Technology in London, the United Kingdom and is an
associate of City and Guilds of London Institute in the United
Kingdom. Mr. Mah is an independent director of Celcom Axiata
Berhad and Catcha Media Berhad in Malaysia. He is also a
member of the Development Board of Imperial College in London.
Prior to that, Mr. Mah was a director of Accenture Solutions Sdn
Bhd, a private company, from 1997 to 2009 and an executive
partner thereof from 1997 to 2008. Mr. Mah was also an executive
partner of Accenture Pte Ltd. in Singapore from 2008 to 2009. Mr.
Mah has very extensive experience in the operation and
management of the telecommunications industry in Asia.

Mr. Han Jun, aged 43, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in December 2013. Mr. Han graduated from the College
of Computer Science of Beijing University of Technology, majoring
in computer software. Since 2004, Mr. Han has held the position
of General Manager of Beijing Flash Unite Network Technology
Co., Ltd, which is a leading mobile phone content and service
provider in the mainland China. Prior to that, Mr. Han worked in
TOM.COM LIMITED as a vice-president from 2000 to 2004,
responsible for the company website and wireless business.
Before 2000, Mr. Han worked in China Potevio Co., Ltd,
responsible for the development of software for operation service
of telecommunication main network. Mr. Han has very extensive
experience in management and operation of telecommunication
value-added business.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tam Chun Wan, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in August 2010. He is also the Chairman
of the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Tam is a qualified accountant and
holds a diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Tam is currently a managing partner of a certified
public accountants firm in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom as well as a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Tam has very extensive
experience in providing auditing, taxation and management
consultancy services.

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in January 2005. She is also
a member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Ms. Tse graduated from the Northern
lllinois University in the USA with a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Ms. Tse is currently employed in a leadership position by
a worldwide computer corporation in Hong Kong. Prior to that,
she has been in the information technology and software industry
for more than 17 years.

Ms. Lai May Lun, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in March 2006. She is also a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Ms. Lai graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in social science
and a master degree in business administration. Ms. Lai had been
the administration manager of a charitable foundation in Hong
Kong. Prior to that, she had worked for the Hong Kong
Telecommunications Limited for more than 20 years and had
extensive experience in various areas of telecommunications.

Senior Management

All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects
of the business and operations of the Group and are regarded as
the members of the senior management team of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

E=gHRE

=

The Directors of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited are pleased
to present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 15 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities
during the vyear.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 50 to 136.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

Summary Financial Information

The following is a summary of the published results and assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years.
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Results EF
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E—NF —FT—=F —FT——F —FT——F ZFT-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT FAT TAT TAT
Revenue g 24,209 4101l 67,244 85,846 69,141
(Loss)/profit before tax BELAT (B8R, Ou A (41,607) (29,444) (23,849) 4,524 (3,035)
Income tax (expense)/credit FT{E % (FAsk), K& (6) 67 (1,626) (3,229) (3,770)
(Loss)/profit for the year AKRRIEmFTE AR
attributable to equity FR(EE), i A
holders of the Company (41,613) (29,377) (25,475) 1,295 (6,805)
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Summary Financial Information (continued)

Assets and Liabilities
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As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NF ZF—=F ZFT——F ZT—F ZT—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHE T T T T T FH T
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - RE N :&E 3,373 3,907 4,043 4,527 4,778
Investment property REYHE 4,767 4,490 3,444 3,278 2,797
Deposits Hisa 371 — 717 826 —
Available-for-sale investments ] 4 & 1% & 831 831 826 809 796
Deferred tax asset RIEMIBE E 1,394 1,396 1,303 3,615 4,990
Current assets mENE E 25,852 76,742 91,705 111,123 96,912
Current liabilities mEEE (25,273) (37,392) (23,780) (24,610) (17,085)
Non-current liability ERBEE (499) (499) (493) 472) (52)
Net assets BEFE 10,816 49,475 77,765 99,096 93,136
Issued capital B ETIRA 75,635 75,635 75,635 75,635 75,295
Reserves 1 (64,819) (26,160) 2,130 23,461 17,841
Total equity RN EEE 10,816 49,475 77,765 99,096 93,136
Property, Plant and Equipment and ME - BERZEURREWE
Investment Property
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and ~ AEEYIX - BERRZEARKEMERFAN 2 &
the investment property of the Group during the year are set out ~ B)FF1E 2 A E R B B R FZ 513514 ©
in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.
Share Capital and Share Options IR 7 % BB AR M
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share 2872 I AR A8 K B A 4 70 F ) 2 B B 6 15 20 Bl 0 Bt
options during the year are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the ¥R MIFE26 %27

financial statements, respectively.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 28(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
(2001 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account is distributable to
the Shareholders provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. The share premium account
may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 88% (2013: 77%) of the
Group's total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for approximately 55% (2013: 36%) of
the Group's total sales.

In the year under review, supplies from the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 32% (2013: 43%) of the
Group's total cost of sales for the year and supplies from the
largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately
11% (2013: 12%) of the Group’s total cost of sales.
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Major Customers and Suppliers (continued)

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 March 2014,
Right Advance Management Limited (a substantial shareholder of
the Company) was interested in approximately 13.76% of the
issued share capital in a company which is the second largest
customer and the fourth largest supplier of the Group. The
ultimate beneficial shareholder of Right Advance Management
Limited (namely, Mr. Wang Leilei) together with Right Advance
Management Limited were, directly and indirectly, interested in a
total of about 20.00% of the issued share capital in such
Company. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company or any of their associates or any Shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman)

Mr. Yip Heon Ping

Ms. Li Luyi (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Mah Yong Sun
Mr. Han Jun

Mr. Chen Xiaoxin

(appointed on 10 December 2013)
(resigned on 10 December 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tam Chun Wan

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine

Ms. Lai May Lun

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Mah Yong Sun, Ms. Li Luyi and Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
"AGM").

Mr. Han Jun, appointed pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of
Association, will hold office until the AGM and, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election at the AGM.
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Independent Non-executive Directors’
Confirmations of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of its independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, an executive Director, entered into a
Director’s service contract with the Company for a term of one
year commencing from 1 April 2003 (the “2003 Service Contract”)
which was renewed automatically each year for successive terms
of one year each subject to termination by either party giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing to the other party.
Pursuant to the supplemental agreement entered into between
Mr. Yip Heon Keung and the Company on 1 April 2013, the terms
of the 2003 Service Contract was extended for a fixed term of
three years from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association. Save as amended by the supplemental
agreement, all other provisions of the 2003 Service Contract
remain in full force and effect.

Mr. Yip Heon Ping, an executive Director, entered into a Director’s
service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 6 August 2009 and expiring on 5 August 2012
(the “2009 Service Contract”), subject to termination by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other party. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement entered
into between Mr. Yip Heon Ping and the Company on 6 August
2012, the terms of the 2009 Service Contract was extended for a
fixed term of three years from 6 August 2012 to 5 August 2015,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association. Save as amended by the
supplemental agreement, all other provisions of the 2009 Service
Contract remain in full force and effect.
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Directors’ Service Contracts (continued)

Ms. Li Luyi, an executive Director, entered into a Director’s service
contract with the Company for a term of one year commencing
from 10 November 2010 and expiring on 9 November 2011 (the
“2010 Service Contract”), subject to termination by either party
giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other
party. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement entered into
between Ms. Li Luyi and the Company on 10 November 2013, the
term of the 2010 Service Contract was extended for a fixed term
of one year from 10 November 2013 to 9 November 2014, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association. Save as amended by the supplemental
agreement, all other provisions of the 2010 Service Contract
remain in full force and effect.

Mr. Mah Yong Sun has renewed the letter of appointment with
the Company as a non-executive Director for a term of one year
commencing from 20 August 2013 and is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

Mr. Han Jun has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of one year commencing from 10
December 2013 and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association.

The term of appointment of each of the independent non-
executive Directors under their respective letter of appointment
made with the Company has been renewed for a term of one
year commencing from the date set out below and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association:

Name Commencement date of renewed term
Mr. Tam Chun Wan 20 August 2013

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine 1 January 2014

Ms. Lai May Lun 1 March 2014

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Remuneration

The Board are authorised by the Shareholders in general meeting
to fix the Directors’ remuneration. Other emoluments are
determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance, the results of the Group as well
as the prevailing market conditions.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out
in notes 8 and 30 to the financial statements.

The Directors confirmed that during the year under review, the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

Share Option Schemes

The Company adopts and administers a share option scheme
which is currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. The Company's original
share option scheme was approved by the Shareholders on 7
March 2000 (the “2000 Scheme”), and was terminated and
replaced by a share option scheme approved by the Shareholders
on 9 April 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”). The 2002 Scheme was
terminated and replaced by a new share option scheme
approved by the Shareholders on 5 August 2011 (the “New
Scheme”). The options granted under the 2000 Scheme, which
were not exercised or terminated or expired previously, became
expired on 21 August 2011. Further details of the 2002 Scheme
and the New Scheme are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

The following tables disclose movements in the Company’s share
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options outstanding during the year: W
2002 Sscheme —EE_F5E
Number of shares issuable under the options***
REBRETFUARTZROEBE
Granted Exercised Lapsed Date of
Name or category At 1 April during during during At 31 March grant of
of participant 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options*
28%E R-B-Z% RER RER RER RZZ-BE BiRE
AERER mA—-H bl Cig:d X% =A=+-H Eod=h
Director
s
Ms. Li Luyi 4,000,000 — — — 4,000,000 9 February 2010
84t e g
—ANE
2,500,000 = == = 2,500,000 23 November 2010
—Z2-%f
=A==k
6,500,000 — = = 6,500,000
Other employees
of the Group
P33
HitfES
In aggregate 100,000 — — — 100,000 26 March 2004
A% —TTQNEF
=A=t+5~H
In aggregate 700,000 — — — 700,000 10 May 2006
A% ZETRE
EA+A
In aggregate 1,840,000 — I (280,000) 1,560,000 9 February 2010
Eh —E-FF
ZAnE
In aggregate 2,150,000 — — (100,000) 2,050,000 23 November 2010
A& el
I i =i

Exercise period of
share options
granted

] 108
ZITEHR

9 February 2010 to

8 February 2020
“Z-FF-ANAZE
“Z-ZF_ANB

23 November 2010 to

22 November 2020

= =
“F-FFT-A=tZH

26 March 2004 to

25 March 2014
“TENF=ZA=+AAZE
—2-NE=R=+AA

10 May 2006 to
9 May 2016

“ZE ¥RATAZE
ZZ-RERANA

9 February 2010 to

8 February 2020
“T-TFE-_ANAZ
ZE-ZF-AN\B

23 November 2010 to

22 November 2020
“E-BE4-A-f=RE
“F-FFT-A=t=AH

TREBAFEARAHATEBREZZHIF

Exercise price of

share options
granted**

R BERE
ZiTEE™

HK$ per share

B (8k)

0.660

0.270

0.100

0.170

0.660

0.270
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

2002 Scheme (continued)

Name or category
of participant

28E
ERRER

Others
Hit

In aggregate
At

=)]

In aggregate
NG

=

In aggregate
e

=)

In aggregate
AL

BA

In aggregate
e

=)

In aggregate
e

=E]
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REMKZERERAF

“E-IFEEFER

B ERE @)
—ST-FrE @0

Number of shares issuable under the options***
REBRETFURTZROGE

Granted Exercised Lapsed
At 1 April during during during At 31 March
2013 the year the year the year 2014
RZB-=% RER RER RER RZB-OF
mA—H Bl 1t ¥ =A=t-H
200,000 — — — 200,000
2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000
1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
5,000,000 = - — 5,000,000
9,200,000 — — — 9,200,000
200,000 = = = 200,000
28,390,000 — — (380,000) 28,510,000

Date of

grant of
share options*
BRE
Biti B8+

26 March 2004
—ZTME
=ZA=tH

24 June 2005
—ZZRF
~NAZTHmA

29 June 2006
“EEAF

~NAZThH

6 July 2007
S
+ARAE

3 April 2008
—ZINE
A=A

3 June 2008
ZEINF
ANAZH

Exercise period of
share options
granted
REBRE
ZIEHR

26 March 2004 to

25 March 2014
ey e =
“E-WE=A-t+EA

24 June 2005 to

23 June 2015
ZETREAAZTHEAZE
“T-RFAA=1+=H

29 June 2006 to
28 June 2016
“FTAEAATARE
“F-AFAAZTAR

1 October 2008 to

5 luly 2017
“ZZ\F+A-HE
—E—tF+AAHA

3 April 2008 to

2 April 2018
—ZT/\FMA=AZE
—Z-\fMA=H

3 June 2008 to

2 June 2018
“ET\FRAZRE
“F-N\FRAZH

Exercise price of

share options
granted**

R RE
ZITEE

HK$ per share

B (BR)

0.100

0.100

0.380

0.3%

0.410

0417
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BRESE @)

Exercise price of

share options
granted**

R RE
ITEE™

HK$ per share

B (8K)

0.165

0.165

0.162

0.165

New Scheme et
Number of shares issuable under the options***
REBRETFURTZROBE
Granted Exercised Lapsed Date of Exercise period of
Name or category At 1 April during during during At 31 March grant of share options
of participant 2013 the year the year the year 2014  share options* granted
28E R-B-=% RER RER RER RZF-OF BRE REBRE
ARAER mA-A g Cig:d X¥ =A=t+-H Ed=h-i ITEHER
Directors
=
Mr. Yip Heon Keung — 7,000,000 — — 7,000,000 5 December 2013 5 December 2013 to
EmditE =5== 4 December 2023
+=AAH —E-=#+-fRAE
“E-=f+-AMA
Mr. Yip Heon Ping - 7,000,000 — — 7,000,000 5 December 2013 5 December 2013 to
ERTELE —T-=F% 4 December 2023
+-AEA “T=f+-fARAZE
“Z-=F+-ANA
— 14,000,000 - - 14,000,000
Other employees
of the Group
AEE
HitES
In aggregate 2,900,000 = = (100,000) 2,800,000 27 March 2013 27 March 2013 to
A%t —T-=fF 26 March 2023
=A=-t+A —Z-=F=A=t+tHZE
ZEZ=F=ZAZ+KH
In aggregate — 14,000,000 = = 14,000,000 5 December 2013 5 December 2013 to
EE —3-=% 4 December 2023
+-RER “Z-=F+-AEHZE
ZZ-=%+-AMmAH
2900000 28,000,000 — (100,000 30,800,000
Notes to the tables of share options outstanding during the year: FREARITEBERER MG :
f The time of acceptance of the share options was within 21 days from  * ERE 2 EMREAEEREZOESHET21IBR -

the options offer date. The share options granted are subject to certain
vesting period and vary for each category of participant as specified
under the respective share option schemes.

B The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company's share capital.

***  There were no share options cancelled during the year.
As at 31 March 2014, the Company had outstanding options to

subscribe for up to 28,510,000 shares and 30,800,000 shares
under the 2002 Scheme and the New Scheme, respectively.

RIESEBBRESEZRE  REZERERE
TRZEERRTNZE T TRZEBHMARR -

= BEEZITEEERBRRARKRET  HAQFRAE
EH SRV B A] TR EE o

kAR M E B T A -

R-F-WMF=A=+—0 ARAHHRE=F
T = 5 81 R#E 875 7 R & 5285100008 R 3

230,800,000 A A8 70 2 1] AR 17 {68 8 B A
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

The Directors have estimated the values of the share options
granted during the year, calculated using the binomial option
pricing model as at the date of grant of the options:

Grantee AR A
Directors ]
Other employees Hibfg 8

The binomial option pricing model is a generally accepted
method of valuing options. The significant assumptions used in
the calculation of the values of the share options were risk-free
interest rate, expected volatility, historical volatility, and dividend
yield. The measurement dates used in the valuation calculations
were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial option
pricing model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due
to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number
of assumptions of the expected future performance input to the
model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables used may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.
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REMREZERERAA
“E-NFEFR

BRESE @)

EECHARFARBZEREZEE  FHREE
TRBRERLBERER —BAAREEERAFE

8 .
(S

Number of shares
issuable under the

options granted Fair value
during the year of share options
FRRERLE ZBRE BREZ
AFUBTZROHE AV EE
HK$'000

THET

14,000,000 1,400

14,000,000 1,413

28,000,000 2,813

THEAMEEEEAR —EEBE M BRENG
TE R EBREZBERARAZEARKER
ERRAE - AHKE BERRERREE - GE
AERZAERRARLEREZAS -

ERB AR ZHRBARARARRBRREIBEER
THEEN  EA-_RAMEEERAGE 2 BRE
BEXE TERRGIAREARSETRERSBIAH
MR -

BRE, BEAETIBRER TARHHAER -
AR AAESTEAY ERREA T EMES
5t o
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Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to
Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by the directors, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company
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EERFTETBRAERKRMS REEK
H2EBERXE

R-ZFE-—WF=A=1t—H EFRAQAEET
BABRARAFEEABEBZE(EERIESF R
HIBRD ([E 5 R EERD ) EXVED) 2 B fn K48
BMEROT  BEREBEIESZMBERMFEXVEBET R
FENMBENEARAIRBEMERSMBERATA
(TP ) 2 Bm RAR (BRRERESFLKHER
FIAERR IR R E W EF A RTEA < BEZTRR) -
SRIFAIFR ET AR BIESIRESTIRBERES
ETEFRFHEMNGARAR R #EE AR
LI

Percentage of
the Company'’s
issued share

capital

Note (3)

Capacity and (G2 A 7

nature of interest Number of ERITRAE

Name of Director Notes =279 ordinary shares Aokt

EspE Bt 55 EattEg ZERHAE B 5E(3)

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (1) Interest of controlled corporations 181,682,918 24.02%
B [A) 98 55 A ZREH AT 2

Mr. Yip Heon Ping 2) Object of a discretionary 181,682,918 24.02%
ErFhE family trust and through

a controlled corporation
PRRGEEZATEEHRR
& iE—HX SN A
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

(1) These shares are held by Greenford Company (PTC) Limited
(“"Greenford”) and Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corporation (“Bakersfield”)
as trustees of The Greenford Unit Trust and The Bakersfield Unit Trust,
respectively. All the units of which are held by Ace Central Group (PTC)
Limited ("Ace Central”) as the trustee of The New Millennium Trust, a
discretionary family trust and Mr. Yip Heon Keung is the sole director
and sole shareholder of Ace Central. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Heon
Keung is deemed to be interested in 181,682,918 shares of the
Company held by Ace Central.

2) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Heon Ping, being one of the discretionary
objects of The New Millennium Trust for the time being, is deemed to
be interested in 181,682,918 shares of the Company. Among these
shares, 122,597,702 shares are held by Greenford as a beneficial owner.
The entire issued share capital in Greenford is held by Mr. Yip Heon
Ping.

(3) Based on 756,355,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March
2014.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the
Company are separately disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” above.

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company
held for the benefit of the Company solely.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the ordinary shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange
pursuant to Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by the Directors.
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REMREZERERAA
“E-NFEFR

RARFEBR I E (B)

©) 255 W& 1% R Greenford Company (PTC) Limited ([ Greenford )
Xz Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corporation ([ Bakersfield ]) % 7]
LAThe Greenford Unit Trust 52 The Bakersfield Unit Trustz 52
HEAFNEE 2552 FHB E ¥ BAce Central
Group (PTC) Limited ([ Ace Central]) BAThe New Millennium
Trust(— B2 REEL) ZXTAFHEE MER
S8t A AAce CentralZ fE—EE R ME—RE - IRIBFES
R ERE &M - FE R385k A AR AR Ace Central FE B AN A
8]181,682918 M AR 15 FR #E A #E 25

@ BT FE S KB E &M - {FAThe New Millennium Trust
EREF—Z2RAEER  ERNTEEHERARA
A AIN81,682918 IR D A - RZERMGH
122,597,702 8% B 15 i Greenford A BE =B A FHEHE -
Greenford = ZpE B ITRABERFEERS °

€) BIFER=F—WF = =+—H B %17.2756,3550000%
ARRBRGEE o

BEERNARABREZES
2| —ETARE -

ST EX [ BRI

B ES  ETFREMARA A NEEAAT
T B A A2 S 6 A AR A 25 -

PR EXFEBEEN RZE—NONF=A=+—8H -
EERARAEBITHABRAR A K E (E ] 155
FEZEBRREAARNTHEREREES LS
B 1RBISE35216R A TR0 8% - HREAIFIR EH AR A
FOLGES/IGABEFETERRZANER
REIRBRFrz BHmIRE -
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or nor
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders

As at 31 March 2014, Shareholders (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the
Company

Name of shareholder Notes

REER FitsE

Greenford Company (PTC) Limited M

Century Technology Holding (PTC) Limited 2
("Century”)

Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corporation @)
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EERERODESZ 2ER

B EX BT El | R EEREBITHABREK
D RAAARN 2 Eam lAR IME T REEI - 1
FAEAKESRERNTMNES REFTAEBICK
REFRELBRBARRZENHESMERZ
AN WETETEE LSRN ARFRE
EAHE QR BB L A EE S EEAMEMEA
FREESZSEN 2Tk -

TERRZEZRKR

R-ZFE—MF=A=1t—H  RERFKRH KA
R EAREE S MR EROIEXVEFE2RE3ID
MZEXEARNARARE @ KALHERARERE
B R B RPI BB IRME T < B R M2 E X
BZBRR(BEEFHARAETETHRABRINAT :

RERFBBKLIGERND 4B

Percentage of

the Company's

issued share

capital

Number of Note (9)

Capacity and  ordinary shares or NN

nature of interest underlying shares BRITRA

FH K EBR® ARl

BEEME HERAHE BirE0)

Beneficially owned 122,597,702 16.21%
Ex%E

Beneficially owned 114,851,701 15.18%
Enlkh

Beneficially owned 59,085,216 7.81%
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RERNRKEZERERAT
R s ™ —— e P Shakii
Interests and Short Positions of Substantial FERE2EZ R AR (&

Shareholders (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the RG] Z BRI R (7 2 4 & (4E)

Company (continued)
Percentage of
the Company's
issued share
capital
Number of Note (9)
Capacityand  ordinary shares or NN
nature of interest underlying shares BRTRA
Name of shareholder Notes FH K EBRR At
RRER Bt BHmtE HERGHE Bt 0)
Ace Central Group (PTC) Limited @) Trustee of a discretionary 181,682,918 24.02%
(as trustee of family trust and through
The New Millennium Trust) controlled corporations
(AThe New Millennium Trust T RERIKELL
ZEFEAGD) EEA&@E
A
Mr. Yip Seng Mun (2),3), @ &) Founder of a 301,095,619 39.81%
EBERELE discretionary family trust,
beneficially owned and through
controlled corporations
ERERIKETZ
%%A ERBER
BEEH DA
Knicks Capital Inc. (6) Beneficially owned 40,480,000 5.35%
ExEE
Mr. Zhang Xingsheng (©) Interest of a controlled corporation 40,480,000 5.35%
REEAESEA —AREH AR R
Right Advance Management Limited @) Beneficially owned 150,000,000 19.83%
EnlkA
Ms. Wang Li Mei ) Interest of a controlled corporation 150,000,000 19.83%
Tyt —RXEH ARz R
Mr. Wang Leilei 7 Interest of a controlled corporation 150,000,000 19.83%
BEAE —AREH ARz
Will City Limited @) Beneficially owned 100,000,000 13.22%
THERAA EnlER
Ms. Zhang Yingnan ) Interest of a controlled corporation 100,000,000 13.22%

REMIL

—HAXEH DRz E
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

(1 Greenford is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its
entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yip Heon Ping, an executive
Director.

2 Century is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its
entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Yip Seng Mun, a
former Director.

(3) Bakersfield is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
its entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Yip Seng
Mun.

(4) An aggregate of 181,682,918 shares are held through Greenford and
Bakersfield as trustees of The Greenford Unit Trust and The Bakersfield
Unit Trust, respectively. All the units of which are held by Ace Central as
the trustee of The New Millennium Trust, a discretionary family trust
established with Mr. Yip Seng Mun as the founder and Mr. Yip Heon Ping
as one of the discretionary objects for the time being. Mr. Yip Heon
Keung, an executive Director, is the sole director and sole shareholder
of Ace Central.

(5) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Seng Mun is deemed to be interested in
181,682,918 shares of the Company as the founder of The New
Millennium Trust, 114,851,701 shares of the Company as the beneficial
owner of Century and personally interested in 561,000 shares of the
Company. In addition, he is also entitled to his share options to
subscribe for 4,000,000 shares of the Company in his capacity as an
employee of the Group.

(6) Knicks Capital Inc. is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and its entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Zhang
Xingsheng.

7) Right Advance Management Limited (“Right Advance”) is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its entire issued share
capital is registered in the name of Ms. Wang Li Mei, and such shares
are ultimately owned by Mr. Wang Leilei. Ms. Wang Li Mei is the sole
director of Right Advance.

(8) Will City Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and its entire issued share capital is held by Ms. Zhang Yingnan.

9) Based on 756,355,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March
2014.
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FTERRZEZRRE (&)

FTERRZ#a RAKE (B)

fi i

Greenford B — IR RBR ZESEMKILZ AR &
EHEBRITRABRRTESTEMFLEEREE -

Centuy B — MR EBEZESEMK L2 R HE
BEBTRAHNTESERREEERSES -

Bakersfield & —M R EB R B Stk Lz Ar - &
EEHEBITRAHERRLEEES ©

A $£181,682918 % F% 15 Fi Greenford & Bakersfield % Bl A
The Greenford Unit Trust & The Bakersfield Unit Trustz 5 &
AFDHEE - ZF {572 F1H B9 BAce Central A
The New Millennium TrustZ Z5EA F 9454 -+ i The New
Millennium Trust & — I8 & & LAZE BR R 55 £ B 81 9F A R A
EnTrErREP —E2RITHURMIZEERK
St HITEEE MRS AE BAce Centralz E—E= R
ME—RER o

RIE B S B E KA - 1B AThe New Millennium Trust
ZEIHA  ERREAEWR RBES KR 7181682918
PR D 2 2 - fEACentuy 2 B A AA AR T
114,851,701 AR A% 17 2 48 7 & ¥ B 2N A 8] 561,000 8% A& 17 2
EAREZ - N FRAAEEZEE  BABEAITR
H%4,000,000% AN A B B 19 2 B S 4 o

Knicks Capital Inc. & — R EBE XS F MK 2 A
Al HEHEBBRITRARRELELERS -

Right Advance Management Limited ( [ Right Advance |) & —
FRABELZESEME I Z AR E2EHEBETR
RAFUE T z2ZFM MESELERNZKRE
BRERGD - T L ARight AdvanceZ E—E = -

THERRA A MR RBRELHEEMAILZ AR
H2HCBHTRAARARMLLIHE -

BER-_Z—WF=A=1+—HE %17 2756,355000/%
RARIBRGFE -
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed by the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors or the controlling Shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined under the
GEM Listing Rules) have any interests in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group, or has
any other conflict of interest with the Group during the year.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
performance, qualifications and competence. As incentives for
their contributions to the Group, the employees of the Group and
all the Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors) may also be granted share
options by the Company from time to time pursuant to the share
option scheme.

The emoluments of the Directors are either determined by the
Remuneration Committee or recommended to the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market remuneration packages for executive
and non-executive directors of listed issuers in Hong Kong.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) on 7 March 2000 and has formulated and from time
to time amended its written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code").

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include review and
supervision of the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures, review of the Group’s financial information
and review of the Group's relationship with its auditors.
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Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tam Chun Wan (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine and Ms. Lai May Lun.

The Group's audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, who is
of the opinion that such statements comply with the applicable
accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Corporate Governance Code

The Directors considered that the Company has complied with all
the code provisions set out in the CG Code as contained in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year under
review.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the GEM Listing Rules based on
the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

Auditors

On 30 March 2012, the preceding auditors of the Group, Ermnst &
Young, resigned and HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB")
were appointed as auditors of the Group.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB whose term of
office will expire upon the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint HLB as auditors
of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no other changes of
auditors for the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Yip Heon Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 June 2014
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Corporate Govemance Report
A

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the conduct of
management of the Company as well as protecting the interests
of all Shareholders. The good corporate governance principles
adopted by the Company emphasise a quality board for leading
and controlling of the Company, effective internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company’s code of corporate governance practices was
adopted with reference to the CG Code and Corporate
Governance Report (“CG Report”) as contained in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out
in the CG Code throughout the year under review.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. In response to specific enquiry made by
the Company, each of the Directors gave confirmation that he/
she complied with the required standard of dealings and the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

Board of Directors

Composition

During the year under review, Mr. Han Jun has been appointed as
a non-executive Director and Mr. Chen Xiaoxin has resigned as a
non-executive Director, both with effect from 10 December 2013.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. All Directors gave sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2014. Each executive Director has sufficient
experience to hold the position so as to carry out his/her duties
effectively and efficiently. In full compliance with Rules 5.05(1)
and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company had in place three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one of whom
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. They provided the
Company with diversified industry expertise, advised the
management on strategic development and assumed that the
Board maintains high standard of compliance with financial and
other mandatory reporting requirements as well as provide
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Company as a whole.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Composition (continued)
The Board as at 31 March 2014 comprised:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman)

Mr. Yip Heon Ping

Ms. Li Luyi (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mah Yong Sun
Mr. Han Jun

Mr. Chen Xiaoxin

(appointed on 10 December 2013)
(resigned on 10 December 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam Chun Wan

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine

Ms. Lai May Lun

The names, biographical details of the Directors and the
relationships among them are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report.

An updated list of the Directors identifying their roles and
functions from time to time is posted on the website of the
Exchange and the Company’s website from time to time.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

To enhance independence and divisions of functions, the roles of
the chairman (“Chairman”) and the chief executive officer (“Chief
Executive Officer”) of the Company have been segregated and
have not been assumed by the same individual during the year
under review.

During the year under review, the Chairman, Mr. Yip Heon Keung,
was responsible for ensuring that the Board functions effectively
and smoothly. In doing so, the Chairman ensured that good
corporate governance practices were adhered to and proper
procedures were established and followed, and that all Directors
were properly briefed and received all relevant information prior
to each Board meeting. The Chairman was also responsible for
overseeing the implementation of corporate strategies of the
Group.

During the year under review, Ms. Li Luyi assumed the role of the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. She is responsible for
overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Group.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. Notice of at least
14 days for all Board meetings were given to all Directors, who
were all given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion. The company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for
each meeting, and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations regarding the meetings are observed. The finalised
agenda and accompanying Board papers are then sent to all
Directors prior to each meeting.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board held four regular
full Board meetings. The individual attendance record of each
Director is as follows:
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Attendance
Directors == N
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman) HEWog kL (E/E) 4/4
Mr. Yip Heon Ping ERFELEE 4/4
Ms. Li Luyi (Chief Executive Officer) TR—ZLT(EEHTE) 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Mah Yong Sun BB EE /4
Mr. Han Jun (appointed on 10 December 2013) ®@&E44 (R-ZT—=%+-A+BEZET) 1/4
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin (resigned on 10 December 2013) BR/NREE (R=ZBE—=F+=-A+HET) 3/4
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Tam Chun Wan EBIRE LA 4/4
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine AKX 4/4
Ms. Lai May Lun BEmE T 4/4

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed
and formulated the overall strategies of the Company, monitored
financial performances and discussed the annual and interim
results, set annual budgets, as well as discussed and decided on
other significant matters.

Apart from the regular Board meetings of the year, the Board met
on other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular
matter was required. The Directors would receive the agenda and
documents to be tabled for consideration and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each Board meeting.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

The Company Secretary recorded the proceedings of each Board
meeting in details by keeping detailed minutes, including all
decisions made by the Board together with concerns raised and
dissenting views expressed (if any). Draft Board minutes were
circulated to all Directors for comments and approval as soon as
practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection
by the Directors at any reasonable time on their request. All
Directors have access to relevant and timely information at all
times as the Chairman ensures that management will supply the
Board and its committees with all relevant information in a timely
manner.

All Directors are provided with monthly updates on internal
unaudited financial statements so as to give them a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects.

Delegation by the Board

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which can be reserved to the Board and
delegated to management. The Board delegates day-to-day
operations of the Group to executive Directors and senior
management while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the
Company's overall strategies and policies, approval of business
plans; evaluating the performance of the Company and
overseeing its management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management
through executive Directors who have attended at Board
meetings.

Directors’ Work Commitments Outside the Group

Directors are required to disclose in a timely manner to the
Company Secretary for any change, the number and nature of
offices held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments, and the identity of such public
companies or organisations. Such information is disclosed in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ Training

The Company provides newly appointed Directors with briefings
on the businesses of the Group and training materials on
corporate governance, directors’ duties and responsibilities and
other matters under the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant
rules and regulations.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, which has come
into effect from 1 April 2012, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year
under review, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending in-house briefing,
studying materials on the topics related to corporate governance
and regulations and/or attending or participating in industry-
specific seminars and conferences and provided a record of
training to the Company.
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Type of trainings

Directors 2E AR
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman) HERREE (EE) ABCHR - -Z A
Mr. Yip Heon Ping ERFhkE ABCHR . -Z A

Ms. Li Luyi (Chief Executive Officer)

FE—REL(BEHTE)

AB.C R Zis A

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Mah Yong Sun BB LA Y, BIERIS T,
Mr. Han Jun (appointed on 10 December 2013) BBE k4 (R-ZT—=F+_Ft+tHEZT) ABHE . Z
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin (resigned on 10 December 2013) [E/NREE (R=ZZE—=F+ = A+ HEF) ABE - Z
Independent non-executive Directors BYEHITES

Mr. Tam Chun Wan EIRE ST A ABCH -2 &
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine AR+ ABHR -7
Ms. Lai May Lun REmE T ABR . Z

A attending in-house briefing in relation to corporate governance and
regulations

B:  studying materials related to corporate governance and regulations

C: attending or participating in industry-specific seminars and conferences
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
cover the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Term of Appointment and Re-election

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a Director’s
service contract with the Company. All non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors have entered into
formal letters of appointment setting out key terms and
conditions relative to their appointment and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association. Details of the term of appointment of the
Directors are disclosed in the section “Directors’ Service
Contracts” of the Report of the Directors in this annual report.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials detailing the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the GEM Listing Rules, the Articles of Association,
related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong
Kong.

Every Director is aware that, before accepting appointment as a
Director, he/she must be able to give sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Company:.

Under the CG Code provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after their appointment and every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at the meeting but shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

040

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

EE® @)

EEEERE
ARRELHEEZEERE  UREEEEALE
APMAEAEZEE BEERREBEATFET

437 -

ZEERERHKN

ERTEFCEARAF L NEERBEL - 7
BROTESTRBUATEFTHCALEARE
- BEREHEEHEREZ T EMRARMGN - X

AEBRABERANGREEERER ARESZ
THERZFRENAEREFTEREEFT ZRH

BH—F-

BEMBERECEFTHSRS M ARBIES - B
HEEERBAERLTRA  ARERAR - &
BHEBRIRAREEREZCBEREEFE -

BREEAE  CEERZER/ERH  RUEBRED
BARBEBRATEZHEREN -

REBECEEBTANRXALRE - FTA RERGERR
TRMERECESRERZERZBEERRAS
FEZBERER NEREF(BRAREAENZ
ER)ERZEIOE=FRESR K-

RBAZGERAR  EEERRBFASL  BF
=D~ ABZES (RMHEABAIF=QH=0Q
2B AIRBEOBAIR=02—2Z8EB) AR
FER HEUER(BREREANZES)HA
ELB=FHERT R EAEESSZENUE
ARRERZEZZENBEEARB TEBRK
Bl YNEAEBMRASLERER  ERETEZ
ARELHEREZEFTHEFTHARBIEAEERA -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s
process and communications among Board members and with
the Shareholders and the management, and advising the Board
and its committees on all corporate governance matters. She
reports to the Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief Executive
Officer and her selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a
Board decision.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

During the year under review, the Company Secretary continued
to be Ms. Lo Oi Ling who has undertaken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training required under Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company did not engage an external
service provider as its Company Secretary.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the website of
the Exchange and the Company’s website.

The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee are independent non-executive
Directors; which all members of the Audit Committee and
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out below.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resource to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the CG Code, the Company established the
Remuneration Committee on 17 June 2005 with written terms of
reference. The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Tse Yuet Ling,
Justine (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Ms. Lai May
Lun and one executive Director, Mr. Yip Heon Keung.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and reviewing the specific remuneration packages
of all executive Directors and senior management by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time.
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During the year under review, a meeting of the Remuneration REBEEERN ' FHZEeR T —=F,xA+ N\
Committee was held on 18 June 2013 for reviewing and Elf*ﬁ%{‘j—//\ap@; EMETwRESENSREEREY
discussing the policy for remuneration of Directors and the senior &Mk - TMEEeSKES L E &% 2 24
management. The individual attendance record of each T :
Remuneration Committee member is as follows:

Attendance
Members RE H R
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (Committee Chairman) WABLZLE(ZESEE) 11
Ms. Lai May Lun REfmr L 1/1
Mr. Yip Heon Keung EmoRtE 11
Nomination Committee REZES

In accordance with the CG Code, the Company established the
Nomination Committee on 29 March 2012 with written terms of
reference. The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Tam Chun Wan and Ms. Lai May Lun.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
formulating nomination policy and making recommendations to
the Board on homination and appointment of Directors and Board
succession, developing selection procedures for nomination
candidates, reviewing the size, structure and composition of the
Board, as well as assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

During the year under review, a meeting of the nomination
committee was held to nominate a newly appointed Director,
namely, Mr. Han Jun as a non-executive Director who was
appointed on 10 December 2013. Another meeting of the
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Nomination Committee was held on 18 June 2013 for the review RZHkE - IREZZTEeZKEZABEESHE 20800
of the nomination policy. The individual attendance record of T :
each Nomination Committee member is as follows:

Attendance
Members K& HERE
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Committee Chairman) RR@ErEE (ZEEFE) 2/2
Mr. Tam Chun Wan BIRE oA 2/2
Ms. Lai May Lun REMZ LT 2/2
Audit Committee EREE®

The Company established the Audit Committee on 7 March 2000
and has formulated and from time to time amended its written
terms of reference in accordance with the provisions set out in
the CG Code. The existing Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tam Chun Wan
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine and
Ms. Lai May Lun.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include review and
supervision of the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures, review of the Group’s financial information
and review of the Group's relationship with its auditors.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under
review. The individual attendance record of each Audit Committee
member is as follows:
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Attendance
Members RE i FE IR B
Mr. Tam Chun Wan (Committee Chairman) BIREhAE (T E2F/E) 4/4
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine HABR LT 4/4
Ms. Lai May Lun RHEmE L 4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and audited
annual results during the year ended 31 March 2014 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure has been made.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
considering and reviewing the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors, including whether such non-audit functions
could lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Group.

During the year under review, the Group paid HK$550,000 to the
external auditors for their audit services and HK$7,400 to their
non-audit related services.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Group, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group and has established
the Group's internal control policies and procedures for
monitoring the internal control system. The internal control
system of the Group is designed to achieve business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure
maintenance of proper books and records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The
management and various departments conduct periodic self-
assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control policies
and procedures. Besides, the Board reviews at least annually the
overall effectiveness of the Group's internal control system.

The Board is of the view that the Group's internal control system
is effective to achieve the Group’s internal control objectives and
will continue to assess the effectiveness of internal controls by
considering reviews performed by the Audit Committee,
executive management and auditors.
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Shareholders’ Relations

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information to its Shareholders.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its Shareholders through various means. The Directors host
the annual general meeting each to meet the Shareholders and
answer their enquiries. The Company also updates its
Shareholders on its latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual, interim and quarterly reports.
The website of the Company has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the Shareholders.
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Shareholders’ Meetings BRRXE
During the year ended 31 March 2014, an annual general meeting #HZ—_ZT—WNF=A=+—HBIEFE KX &K=
of the Company was held on 7 August 2013. The individual 2—*&)\)%4:52% TREBFRE - KEEFFBE
attendance record of each Director is as follows: HEeE s mT

Attendance
Directors X HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman) ERREE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Yip Heon Ping EmFELEE 11
Ms. Li Luyi (Chief Executive Officer) TE—LT(HEHTE) on
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Mah Yong Sun BEHEE 0/1
Mr. Han Jun (appointed on 10 December 2013) BBE k4 (R-Z—=F+_F+tHEZT) 0/1
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin (resigned on 10 December 2013) [R/NAkE4E (RZZE—=F+_—_ 8+ HET) 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Tam Chun Wan EBIRE LA 11
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine it AR+ 1”7
Ms. Lai May Lun REfmu =+ 11
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Investor Relations

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders and established a range of communication
channels between itself, its Shareholders and investors in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. During the year under
review, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, Shareholders are
requested to follow article 64 of the Articles of Association,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of
any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one day of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expense
incurred by the requisition(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election
as a Director are laid down in article 113 of the Articles of
Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose
such person for election as a Director, signed by a Shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed for election as a Director)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head
office or at the Registration Office. The minimum length of the
period during which such notices are given shall be at least seven
clear days and the period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence no earlier than the day immediately after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
intention and end no later than seven days before the date of
such general meeting.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, by fax: (852) 2838 2922,
e-mail at ir@prosten.com.cn or mail to Unit 802, 8th Floor,
Dominion Centre, 43-59 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Information Disclosure

The Company discloses information in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements
to the public in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to ensure
information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and
complete thereby enabling Shareholders as well as the public to
make rational and informed decisions.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B 2R RS

Bl #F ¢t m F# A R
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

To the shareholders of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosten
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to
136, which comprise the consolidated and the Company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company are responsible for
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit, and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BT % BAD

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2.1 to
the consolidated financial statements, which states that the
Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$41,613,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2014. This condition, along with other
matters set forth in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number. P05467

Hong Kong, 23 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or LOSS
and Other Comprehensive Income OSO

reBmkEtEEiaEX
PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

S i e ———w—————< [

Yearended31March2014 B EZ T —WE=ZA=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —EF—=%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5 FHET FET
Revenue Y #5 5 24,209 57,161
Cost of sales FH & A (11,919) (29,840)
Gross profit ER 12,290 27,321
Other income and gains H AU A R 5 1,956 2,333
Selling expenses HERX (11,443) (15,149)
Administrative expenses THRAE (40,057) (38,242)
Other expenses HEafZ (4,187) (5,444)
Finance costs B8R 6 (166) (263)
Loss before tax FRBEATES 1B 7 (41,607) (29,444)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTSs (Fx) 2 10 (6) 67
Loss for the year attributable to A QA F#EXEEEE AES
equity holders of the Company FREE 11 (41,613) (29,377)
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mkas
Item that may be reclassified HEAEEN 7 HE B2
subsequently to profit or 10ss: EH :
Exchange differences on translation R ESGINEFE 7 [E K,
of foreign operations =¥ 485 707
Total comprehensive expense AATERSEAENL
for the year attributable to FRAEZHBXESE
equity holders of the Company (41,128) (28,670)
Loss per share attributable to ARREBRERBERAEWL
ordinary equity holders BREE
of the Company 12
Basic R (HK5.50) (HK3.88)
cents 1l cents A1
Diluted e N/A N/A
i A3 A

Details of dividend are set out in note 28(c) to the financial

Statements.

BRARR S 2 FE BN M A5 #R MY FE28(0)



Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position
A g AR R
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RERFEZERERDF
31March2014 = —HF=/=+—H
2014 2013
—E—mE —F—=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
g FHET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB NEE 13 3,373 3,907
Investment property wEME 14 4,767 4,490
Deposits HiEn 20 371 —
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 16 831 831
Goodwill EES 17 — —
Deferred tax asset RIERIBEE 18 1,394 1,396
Total non-current assets kRBEERLE 10,736 10,624
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables JiE U BR X 19 5,197 13,431
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE{f 318 - 514 K E 4y
JE YR IE 20 7,835 10,866
Due from Directors JEWE S 2 FA 21 — 655
Pledged deposits [REECREE=N 22 250 12,740
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEEY 22 12,570 39,050
Total current assets REBEERE 25,852 76,742
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEME
Trade payables FETER 3K 23 9,952 12,634
Other payables and accruals HM A RIERETRIE 24 11,455 9,443
Due to Directors ENES 2 HIE 21 535 —
Interest-bearing bank borrowing, secured BRI RERRITEE 25 = 11,400
Tax payable e B TE 3,331 3,915
Total current liabilities BB AR 25,273 37,392
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 579 39,350
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEZERRE & & 11,315 49,974
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBEE
Deferred tax liability RIEHIBEAE 18 499 499
NET ASSETS EEFE 10,816 49,475
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to equity holders ARAFERBFEA
of the Company PEfhRE =
Share capital A% 2 26 75,635 75,635
Reserves G 28(a) (64,819) (26,160)
TOTAL EQUITY EXEm 10,816 49,475

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of Directors (the “Board”) on 23

June 2014 and were signed on its behalf by :

Yip Heon Keung
Chairman

= [m) 5]

FE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

Statements.

REFERE

Yip Heon Ping

Director

KB
¥

HEMBRRER - OFA-_t=ZHEES
e([EFg)HERKETNE

YWEBHNATALR

BEMT < Mt R SR M R 2 AR ED D ©
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARREEEAES
Foreign
Share Statutory  currency  Share
Share premium reserve translation option Accumulated Reserves  Total
Notes  capital account fund reserve reserve losses sub-total  equity
. _Ef EE o BRE ) N N
i3 REA  REER REES ENRG i 2EFE RENT BEREG
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr  TEr  TEx TEL THEx TEr  FTET TER
(note a) (note b)
(Mzka)  (BI3Eh)
AL Al 2013 —=§mA—H 75635 372468 3349 14319 7793 (424,089) (26,160) 49,475
Loss for the year ZWE'ETE = = = = = (41,613) (41,613) (41,613)
Other comprehensive income FREMZENRS
for the year:
Exchange differences on tranlation BEBNEB L
of foreign operations BN ESR — — - 485 - - 485 485
Total comprehensive 3 W iﬁuﬁl 5/(B%)
income/(expense) for the year - - - 485 — (41,613) (41,128) (41,128)
Equity-settled share option A ﬁé RE 7 BRE
arrangements T 28(b) — - - — 2469 — 2469 2,469
Transfer of share option reserve B2 e e
on the forfeited share options R GEE () = = = - () 221 = -
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-NF=A
=+-H 75,635 372,468 3,349 14,804 10,041 (465,481) (64,819) 10,816
At 1 April 2012 RZE--FNA—AH 75635 372,468 3,349 13,612 7,757 (395,056) 2130 77,765
Loss for the year AEEER — — — - - (29.377)  (29.377)  (29377)
Other comprehensive income £R ﬁﬂtém&é :
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation BEBIEB L
of foreign operations ERER — — — 707 — — 707 707
Total comprehensive FR2ERE/ (FX)
income/(expense) for the year bk - — — 707 - (29377)  (28,670)  (28,670)
Equity-settled share option NEREE 2 BRE
arrangements T 28(0) — — — — 380 — 380 380
Transfer of share option reserve BREGR e
on the forfeited share options BRERE 28(0) — - - - (344) 344 - -
At 31 March 2013 W=Z2-=%=§
E - 75635 372468 339 W39 7793 (424089) (26160 49475
Notes: BiE
(@)  Statutory reserve fund @ EAEREES
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for business enterprises in BEAPEAREIME([RE]) AOHEBEEERERE
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), a portion of the profits of the Bl - A HR B A A Z ?-i Bemrmt DB REFREM
entities which are registered in the PRC has been transferred to the BZEAERBEES ERSREECHEBEZERE
statutory reserve fund which is restricted as to use. When the balance of 7N 2 50% E% AEERTEHE— SRR - EAEREE
such reserve fund reaches 50% of the capital of that entity, any further SEERSHEBISFIER T ABA - LAEEUATF
appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, BEZEENEE - A EREACHREEZSRZ2&EH
upon approval of the relevant authority, to offset prior years’ losses or to BEDEFEERZ225% °
increase capital. However, the balance of the statutory reserve fund
must be maintained at least 25% of capital after such usage.
(b)  Foreign currency translation reserve L)  SMEEE R
Foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences ’>7|\ 'ﬁ% L RBEERASERINER s BEFEAE
relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group's foreign EEBRERAEE 2B (BT BEL L
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation E FL EZfH EEREME2ERETFERRRINGE K
currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) are recognised directly in other FERE: - ZEWIINEELFEERSAZELEZER

comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the foreign operations.

HEBIEBHERD

=HRHENA -




Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows O 53
= A N—
mERERER
RERBZERERAR
R i = > ] SEomEE
Yearended31March2014 & Z=F—WF=A=+—HILLFE
2014 2013
—ZE-NF —F—=

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT FAET

CASH FLOWS FROM REXBRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax FRELRIEE (29,444)
Adjustments for: AT S FIA
Finance costs B TS E A 6 263
Interest income FEMA 5 (528)
Investment income "EWA 5 477)
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - BEREHE
property, plant and equipment HEB 2 W= 5 —
Depreciation e 7 1,504
Equity-settled share option DA aEE o R B
arrangements 7,28(b) 380
Fair value gain on REWME 2 N EERZE
an investment property 5,14 (991)
Impairment allowances FE AR SR B B
on trade receivables 7,19
Impairment on other receivables H b fE GBI E 7
(28,563)
Decrease in trade receivables JFE UK BR R 3182
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  FB{2IE - 514 K& H f FE U
deposits and other receivables RIER D, (38m) (2,925)
Decrease/(increase) in due e E = 2 FRIER D
i from Directors () (652)

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables  FETBE 2% (R 4>) /38 hn 9,070

Increase/(decrease) in other o fth < FR0E K fE R RUE
payables and accruals i, CRd)

Increase/(decrease) in due to Directors fEt % &~ ZIE & i~
CR )

bE 3

Exchange realignment

Cash used in operations
Bank interest paid
Hong Kong profits tax paid

Profits taxes paid outside Hong Kong

REXBRAZAS
ERIRITHIE
ENEBNEHEA
B EBRINGHRIA

Net cash flows used in
operating activities

FER

REXBAAZRERE




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

S i e ———w—————< [

Yearended31March204H Z =T —MF=A=+—HILFE
2014 2013
—F-DHNF —T-=fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
Net cash flows used in KEEBRAZRERE
operating activities FRE (27,909) (26,858)
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBzZRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 U B 503 528
Investment income received B U E WA 494 477
Purchases of items of property, BAME BERZHEIEE
plant and equipment 13 (1,068) (1,335)
Proceeds from disposal of items LEME MELREER
of property, plant and equipment Fr 18 5KR 90 —
Decrease/(increase) in EEBERORLD, (1)
pledged deposits 12,490 (12,335)
Exchange realignment ME W R 2 -
Net cash flows generated BREEBELE/(FA)RSE
from/(used in) investing activities mEFRR 12,511 (12,665)
CASH FLOWS FROM MEXBZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New interest-bearing bank MEBZFERITEER
borrowing raised — 11,400
Repayment of bank borrowing BB RTT 1ji = (11,400) —
Bank interest paid BATIRITH.E (166) —
Net cash flows (used in)/generated MEER (A EEZ
from financing activities WeREFE (11,566) 11,400
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERBELEENHD FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (26,964) (28,123)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNzBEERRECEEY
beginning of year 39,050 67,135
Effect of foreign exchange B R ) 7 2HEE
rate changes, net 484 38
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S & HREREEZEY
AT END OF YEAR 12,570 39,050
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND ReRBAEESEYH M
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B4 &fﬁﬁ = Eh 22 10,075 36,543
Non-pledged time deposits with RES R R = & A A 5| 3
original maturity of less than ZEI IR T BE K
three months when acquired 2,495 2,507

cash and cash equivalents as RiZEMBRRARREE
stated in the consolidated HEFRERENWZ2EER
statement of financial position REEEY
and consolidated statement
of cash flows 12,570 39,050




Statement of
Financial Position
AR R

055

RENEEZERERLR
31March2014 = —mHF=/=+—H
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MFE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZKE 15 14,057 15,769
Total non-current assets kRBEEHEE 14,057 15,769
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TEFTRRIE ~ AT R EAMD
other receivables JFE U 5 I8 20 200 148
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFED 22 4 o4
Total current assets REBEEHAE 204 202
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Other payables and accruals b JE A 5B R B RUE 24 1,600 1,292
Total current liabilities REBEEHEE 1,600 1,292
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE (1,396) (1,090)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 12,661 14,679
NET ASSETS EEFE 12,661 14,679
EQUITY Rz
Share capital A% 2 26 75,635 75,635
Reserves i 28(b) (62,974) (60,956)
TOTAL EQUITY ERem 12,661 14,679

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 23 June 2014 and were signed on its behalf by:

Yip Heon Keung
Chairman

Ak
2

MBBRRCR _F-—OFAA-_t=ZBRESZSH
ERRETE  YERAATAIRRETFEEE

Yip Heon Ping

Director

E 4ok
EF



Notes to the Financial Statements
S R 2R MY R T

31March2014 = Z—ME=A=+—H

24

Corporate Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is Unit 802, 8th Floor,
Dominion Centre, 43-59 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The Company's shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of Preparation

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The measurement basis used
in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
is the historical cost convention, except for investment
property which has been measured at fair value.
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 21 mBEEE W@
These consolidated financial statements are presented in MEBAEEBEEIN  HESESMBERELET

Hong Kong dollars which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated. The Group’s
major subsidiaries are operated in the People’s Republic of
China with Renminbi (“RMB") as their functional currency.

The Group had incurred loss for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$41,613,000 (2013: HK$29,377,000) for the year ended 31
March 2014 and had a net operating cash outflow of
approximately HK$27,313,000 (2013: HK$ 25,746,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2014. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. Nevertheless, the Directors are of the
opinion that the Group will have sufficient working capital
to meet its financial obligations as and when the fall due for
the next twelve months from 31 March 2014 on the basis
that:

(@ The management has taken various cost control
measures to tighten the costs of operations and
reduce various general and administrative expenses;
and

(b)  Three of the substantial shareholders of the Company,
who beneficially own 296,534,619 ordinary shares of
the Company, representing 39.20% of the total issued
share capital of the Company on 31 March 2014,
agreed to provide financial support and working
capital to the Company until the Company has
sufficient funds for the continuing operations of the
Group so as to meet its liabilities and to pay financial
obligations to third parties as and when they fall due
to continue as a going concern and carry on its
business without a significant curtailment of
operations for the twelve months from 31 March
2014.

(MBARBIZYHEERR) 2] IESEY
HAEBEERROTUHE AKBZEZZHER
BIRAEARKAMBEELER  DEEE
BARBETARKE] -

AEBRBE T NF=A=1+—HIF
EZARAEZHEARMFEFRNEBENR
41,613,000 T (=& — =4 : 29,377,000/ 7T )
PREE-_T-—ME=ZF=+—HILFEZ
CEEBAAZIR S 4 5273130008 T (==
— =4 : 257460008 7T ) °c ZEMREBERTFE
BATHEREEZAREAREER 2 IFELE
NEERF - At AEBEAIgEBEERER
XN BRETPEREERBKRAG - A £
ERELEERERTEEESCRYER
E—NE=ZA=Z+—HBAERR+=EAZ
Hiz0%aE BHaIT

(@) EEECHRRZEMANZEGERAKRE
RERARBLERE—RMITHRAX
K

(b) E A AR F296534,619 % i 8 A% B
BUERRATR-ZE—NE=H=+—
HEEITRALREE 23920%) 2 ANRAF) =
ZEBRERE A AR AIRET B
h&BEES HEARAEERRER
BECENEBER  BHER_ZT—
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MREBERE=AEEFKEE K
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 21 MmREEZE )

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the Group’s consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. The validity of the
going concern assumption on which the consolidated
financial statements are prepared is dependent on the
successful and favourable outcomes of the steps being
taken by the Directors as described above. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a
going concern basis and therefore do not include any
adjustments relating to the carrying amount and
reclassification of assets and liabilities that might be
necessary should the Group be unable to continue as a
going concern.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2014. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated
in full on consolidation.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
in the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

At - EFERR BEELEEERHEAE
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to
the Group and effective for the first time for the Group's
current year's financial statements.

22 BRFBRRRBEENE

RAFEE  AEBEBATHEESFMA
ERMOEETTEMHRARER - ZFE
AIEAKEERAANAFEARE 2 U KR
REREN -

Amendments to
HKAS 1

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
Amendments to

HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12
Annual

Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive
Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities
Fair Value Measurement

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities —

Transition Guidance

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSS issued in June 2012
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 22 @5t R BEREE ()

(continued)

Except for the amendments to HKAS 1, the application of
these new HKFRSs has no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

The nature of the impending changes in accounting policy
on adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1 is described
below.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology for
the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a “statement
of comprehensive income” is renamed as a “statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income” and an
“income statement” is renamed as a “statement of profit or
loss”. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into
two categories in the other comprehensive income section:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis. The amendments do not
change the option to present items of other comprehensive
income either before tax or net of tax.

BREBGHENFIRZERIN  BRZEN
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 B #8518 & 5k £ &) & 4 81 15 &
Issued But Not et Effective A A
The Group has not applied or early adopted the following AEFEWERZERE VB RE A FEAK IR

BERATIIEKLRMIE®RERNFET I
(BRI BEMERHRER(BREEREERT) -

new or revised HKFRSs (including their consequential
amendments) that have been issued but not yet effective in

these consolidated financial statements. The name and
principal nature of pronouncements which may be relevant
to the Group are set out below.

Name of HKFRS Principal nature

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014:

Amendments to HKAS 32 The amendments mainly

Financial Instruments:

Presentation — Offsetting

Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

clarify the requirements
for offsetting financial
instruments.

Amendments to HKAS 36 The amendments mainly

Impairment of Assets —
Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets

HK (IFRIC*)-Int 21
Levies

contain certain disclosure
requirements of
information about the
recoverable amount of
impaired assets if that
amount is based on fair
value less costs of
disposal.

It addresses how an entity

should account for
liabilities to pay levies
imposed by governments,
other than income taxes,
in its financial statements.

= IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting

Interpretations Committee.

AREEAKEARMMEMG 2 ERI 2 R R E
ZHEEHINMT -
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

Name of HKFRS Principal nature

Mandatory effective date yet to be determined but is
available for adoption:

HKFRS 9 It revises the basis in determining

Financial Instruments ~ whether a financial asset is
measured at amortised cost or fair
value by the way an entity manages
its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets.

Additions to HKFRS 9 The additions mainly prescribe
Financial Instruments — requirements on the accounting
Financial Liabilities for financial liabilities.

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements
to HKFRSs pursuant to the Annual Improvements Projects:
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and
Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 2011-2013 Cycle, which
contain amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 2, HKFRS 3, HKFRS
8, HKFRS 13, HKAS 16, HKAS 24, HKAS 38 and HKAS 40.
Those amendments that may relevant to the Group are as
follows:

Amendments to The amendments mainly amend
HKFRS 2 the definitions of “vesting condition”
Share-based Payment  and “market condition” and add
definitions for “performance
condition” and “service condition”.
An entity should apply that
amendments to share-based
payment transactions for which
the grant date is on or after 1 July

2014.

23 DM E R LR FE Y H

AR (@)

BBMI R RAER
ZEW

FEMEHE

FEEMER A R H AR B

BERMBREER BB e MAE
9% NEEEERRSAMT
THTA B2 7T R E A
KN FEEFENR
ERMEEZENRE
MEFBZETE

* o
BERAMBREER SZEMEBEREEER
FIRZHERE TERAEBIARE

TMTA—HERE k-

BrEMEIN BASHMASEREBEFER
HIEE —EEFE T —FHHCE
BRI ERFEHER —F——FF
T —=F R BB B HERFEE A
(BREEBVHRARELNE 1% - BEHB A
WAERZE25  BEVBHRREREIR - &
B ER R AERIES: C BBV IR ERFE
1357 - BB LT ERIE 1658 - HE G ER
F2U5  BESHERERREREBSSE
AIZE405R 2 185T) - B T BB R mAER
LU o AIBEEAAR KR BAERE 2 2 FBET T ¢

BRMBHRER BEREXEEF
SB25R 2B R FEIRM ] R
Y =L PE ZEE - WX

B A& R BR# 15
FlZER - BERE
REEABHR T —
MEE-A—-—BRZR
Z AR BANRZ
RZHERAZEFER -



Notes to the Financial Statements
Neahh 063
EEREERERAT

31March2014 = —HF=/=+—H

2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 2 28 #1184 KEM 89 E & 8 15 &
Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued) AR (@)
Name of HKFRS Principal nature BB ERREAL FTEME
2 &
Amendments to One of those amendments requires B I IS R ZEEFTHB AR
HKFRS 3 contingent consideration that is HIWZIEET ENHEABENARE
Business Combinations  classified as an asset or a liability to HELS G Z AR BERSH
be measured at fair value at each wmEBEAFEEER
reporting date. An entity shall apply 2o ERARKER
this amendment prospectively to HAR-_ZT—MNFELH
business combinations for which — Bz & ZER
the acquisition date is on or after B PERTIE 4 e Az 15
1 July 2014. al e
Further amendments to HKFRS 3 EE B TSR ERER S
clarify that HKFRS 3 excludes from I/ E—FEFE
its scope the accounting for the B BB KRR
formation of a joint arrangement B S35 BEB RN A &
in the financial statements of the THEAR & 7 B s shk
joint arrangement itself. ALK S & & 2 HEE
HEFrEE -
Amendments to The amendments were mainly EB B BRRED BB EIES LG
HKFRS 8 about the disclosures related to HE8YE S 5T A4 A 5 SR B 4 T 4
Operating Segments aggregation of operating segments, AR MR EHE ZWE -

and reconciliation of segments
assets.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 Eﬁ h 18 18] R A Y & B B % E

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued) =Rl ()
Name of HKFRS Principal nature ERMERREAL FTEME
2 A8
Amendments to The amendments mainly clarify that EBEEHAE BB TEEE -
HKFRS 13 issuing HKFRS 13 and amending FI3RZ BT PR B A B T R R
Fair Value Measurement HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 did not A FEEGZE A 1398 RIERT & B
remove the ability to measure B 75 BB R 4E R 59 5%
certain short-term receivables and REB S ERZE39
payables on an undiscounted basis SR B PR R R YT IR
(amends basis for conclusions EE(EBF]HmE
only). They also clarify the scope of E)irEr TREE
the portfolio exception. Hﬁl FIBRERNRIEZ
BE ) - BRI N E
BEBIREAS BN
Bz &E -
Amendments to The amendments mainly clarify EHEEEL BB ETEES
HKAS 16 that the gross amount of property, H165R 25T M WERERE
Property, Plant and plant and equipment is adjusted WE - BERRE A RE L B (L AR (B
Equipment in @ manner consistent with a — B2 AXNETH

revaluation of the carrying
amount.

%go

Amendments to The amendments mainly clarify ER S EL BT EERM
HKAS 24 how payments to entities H2455 21T RIEEE R 2 EEE

Related Party providing management services BEENTHEE Z AT RS ] 3 5 o
Disclosures are to be disclosed.

Amendments to The amendments mainly clarify EB S AR BEEIITEEBS
HKAS 40 the interrelationship of HKFRS 3 £ 4055% Z 18 FT 4 — TE Y R S K A

Investment Property and HKAS 40 when classifying wREYHE EyEsie By E

property as investment property
or owner-occupied property.

B - &8 B 5 B A
Al FE3 EEF B G5
#RIZE405% 2 F #) 48
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Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

Except for those specifically stated above, the amendments
contained in Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle and Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 2011-2013
Cycle are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014, although entities are permitted to apply them
earlier.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these new
or revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in a
position to state whether they would have any significant
impact in its results of operation and financial position. It is
anticipated that all of the pronouncements will be adopted
in the Group's accounting policy in the accounting period
when they first become effective.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FE @i KEME (&)

(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
result to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company'’s investments in subsidiaries that are not
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value
of the Group's previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at end of reporting period.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. Where goodwill has been
allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.
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(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value PEON - BETEHISER S ATEEBETETIR
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based b7 /‘$f§@§+§$§)\1§z—[gﬁﬁ$§ﬁ&/\$
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value BHEHIITEHABZERESEYSEAE—E -
measurements are observable and the significance of the E_ERE=E  HHWT :

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1:  inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—E: BAEAHEREENEGENRE %
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the AEAZERMIGESE HEH
entity can access at the measurement date; WE(CREAE)

Level 2. inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices F-E: BABAEEXEEN HENEE
included within Level 1, that are observable for Rz AE(FEETA
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; —EHRE) : &
and

Level 3:  inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or FZE: GAERAEEXEBITUERZ
liability. BAE -

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
property), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment l0ss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises (only if there are revalued assets in the financial
statements), unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2.5% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 30% or over the lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Leasehold building

Office equipment 30%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at end of each financial period.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Investment property

An investment property is an interest in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such property is measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of an
investment property are included in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised to profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest
element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.
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(continued)

Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lesseeg, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating lease are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of land and buildings as a finance lease
in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, the are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or
loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
valuation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and removed from the available-
for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and dividends
earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in profit or 10ss in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near
term are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to
loans and receivables is permitted when the financial
assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and the
Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. Reclassification to the
held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity
has the ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of
the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to profit
or loss.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cashflows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the 10ss is
recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to profit
or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such an ungquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
profit or loss, is removed from the comprehensive income
and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available of sale are not reversed through the
income statement. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transaction costs.
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(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amount and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group'’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are no restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or l0ss is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax asset and liability for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax asset is reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and is recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax asset and liability are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax asset
against current tax liability and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recoghition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ services income, when the relevant services have
been rendered:;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

() investment income, when the policyholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme which is
currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Employees (including Directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
option pricing model, further details of which are given in
note 27 to the financial statements.
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(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not a
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to participate in the employee retirement
scheme operated by the relevant local government bureau
in Mainland China. The contributions to be borne by the
Group are calculated at a certain percentage of the salaries
and wages for those eligible employees.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. All differences are taken to the
statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.
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(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued) s ()

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries HETHBINNBRAR ZMEESEWIEREIT - B
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the MEH KR ZEEEB /2 EENEBEBEHERERS
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of HRZERBEARNNA Z2HEE Mz
these entities are translated into the presentation currency R U EBRRIREANAZINEELHEXRRE
of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of ABET - AMELAZER=ZERNEME2@E
the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss WEHHER - WRINEE X FEEP R - B
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted - 59\\%4“’15% BTN EBREB EM
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange 2HR B NERRKER ©

differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash AR eRERMS  BIKEBERRZIR
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated {ﬁ mERBECRERHERZERBE AF

into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the T o BINMBRARIEFRNEEZKBHRS
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of ,ﬁ;;\}g REBZINEEHERRE BT °

overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Related parties BREATL
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, @ MEBATAL BIZALTHZALZRK
is related to the Group if that person: PR3 35 B 7R &R (B 5 A &
() has control or joint control over the Group; () dEHlskEEESIAEE
(i) has significant influence over the Group, or iy HAEEBEEAFE =k
(i) is a member of the key management personnel iy ABAEAEEHIAE NAIZEBE

of the Group or the Group's parent. BAE -
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(continued)

Related parties (continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(o)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. A
transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer.

086

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

24 FTESTHEBME #)

FEEAL (A
0 A TIMEMEGESE - R EEEAREE
BRE -

) ZERELAKEBER-SEZKE
NA(ANERBRA - HEARNRRA
EMBARRILEERE) -

iy —HEBAZEBIBEQAX
BELE(XRZ—EBAKEAT
ZEBEBETKRE AR ZHBE QA
BERE)-

(iy HEBEAKEHG/FR-—F=TZ
BEDE-

M —HERBAF=-TEBZAEED
X Mr—ERBRRF=-HEREZ
il WG

V) ZEBAAEENELAKEERBE
ZEREBRNRLZHBILE
METE -

V) ERX(@)FTHERALTEHIRARE
i o

Vi) RE@OTBINATHZEREEX
FENFIBZER(IZERZE
NEDEZEHAR o

BETRS
BFHAEEFEZEANALTXZEZE LR
HERE - —EFEERZXHHRR
ALERS e



Notes to the Financial Statements
B IR R M 7T

31March2014 = —mHF=/=+—H

087

REMREZERERAA
—E-NFEFR

Significant Estimation Uncertainties and
Accounting Judgements

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires management to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value. Please refer to note 17 to the financial
statements for the carrying value of goodwill at end of
reporting period.

Impairment of trade receivables and other
receivables

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables is
made based on an assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables and other receivables. The identification
of doubtful debts requires management judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation in
future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will have an impact on the carrying value of the
receivables as well as doubtful debt expenses or write-back
of doubtful debts in the period in which such estimate has
been changed. Please refer to notes 19 and 20 to the
financial statements for the carrying value of trade
receivables and other receivables at end of reporting
period.
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etz T RERER

RBERAR AIRERTEAMBRFEZLEE
REBEREEEREERABZEARRZA
AARZEIEREMAEMBF Z A EERER
ZEBRIREINAT »

& el fE

REETHELTRER AL ESREHE
ZREELBU 2 EREE FEERERE
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Significant Estimation Uncertainties and
Accounting Judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of an investment property
As described in note 14 to the financial statements, the
investment property was revalued at the end of the
reporting period on an open market, existing use basis by
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers.
Such valuation was based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the estimation, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources, including
current prices in an active market for similar properties and
uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.
Please refer to note 14 to the financial statements for the
carrying value of investment property at end of reporting
period.

Valuation of share options

As described in note 27 to the financial statements, the
Company engaged an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers to assist in the valuation of the share
options granted during the year. The fair value of options
granted under the share option schemes is determined
using the binomial option pricing model. The significant
inputs into the model were share price at grant date, risk-
free interest rate, exercise price and expected volatility of
the underlying shares. When the actual results of the inputs
differ from management’s estimate, it will have an impact
on share option expense and the related share option
reserve of the Company. The fair value of the share options
granted during the year by the Company was approximately
HK$2,813,000 (2013: HK$325,000). Further details of the
share options are set out in note 27 to the financial
Statements.
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R EHARZEEE  F2H0BREME
14 0
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Significant Estimation Uncertainties and
Accounting Judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2014 was approximately
HK$1,394,000 (2013: HK$1,396,000). Further details are
contained in note 18 to the financial statements.

Current income taxes

The Group's subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subject
to Enterprise Income Tax in the PRC. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax in the
period in which such determination is made. The provision
for income tax of the Group and the Company at 31 March
2014 was approximately HK$3,331,000 (2013: HK$3,915,000)
and nil (2013: nil), respectively.
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Significant Estimation Uncertainties and
Accounting Judgements (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
Statements:

Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in the
respective functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries. In determining the functional currencies of the
entities comprising the Group, judgement is required to
determine and consider the currency that mainly influences
sales prices of services and of the country jurisdiction
whose competitive forces and regulations mainly
determines the sales prices of services; the currency that
mainly influences labour and other costs of providing
services; the currency in which funds from financing
activities are generated; and the currency in which receipts
from operating activities are usually retained. The functional
currencies of the entities comprising the Group are
determined based on management’s assessment of the
primary economic environment in which the entities
operate. When the indicators are mixed and the functional
currency is not obvious, management uses its judgement
to determine the functional currency that most faithfully
represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.

Operating Segment Information

The Group has only one single operating segment as the
Group is principally engaged in wireless value-added
services and related business which is the basis to allocate
resources and assess performance. No geographical
information is presented as the Group's customers
operations and assets are located in the Mainland China.

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 March 2014, revenue of
approximately HK$13,329,000 (2013: HK$20,337,000) and
approximately HK$4,949,000 (2013: HK$15,027,000) were
derived from services rendered to two (2013: two)
customers. No other single customer contributed 10% or
more to the Group's revenue for both the years ended 31
March 2014 and 2013.
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of services rendered during the years.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains

091

ERNERARAT
—F-mEFH
5. Wam - EAWA KMas

B AEE Y SEE  HERMRERS
ZHERE -

AEBEKE  HibWARKESTOT :

is as follows:
Group
rE
2014 2013
= F-mFE —T=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHE T
Revenue Y &5
Services income AR 75 U A 24,209 57,161
Other income and gains H ol A R Ui
Bank interest income SRAT AL B A 503 528
Investment income KEWA 494 477
Net foreign exchange gains P& 5 Uk % 0 R 88 —
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BERRHEE 2 W
plant and equipment 51 —
Fair value gain on an investment wEYHE 2 N FEE R (ME14)
property (note 14) 284 991
Others H A 536 337
1,956 2,333
26,165 59,494
6. Finance Costs 6. HIBEHR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: HBERSWNBAT :
Group
xE
2014 2013
—E-mE —ZE—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Interest on: F &
bank borrowing wholly repayable ARRAFRNBE
within five years BEEZBITES 164 165
bank overdrafts RITEX 2 98
Total borrowing costs BIEER A 166 263
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7. Loss Before Tax 7. BRWAIEE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REFB BB RLSHE (G A) T3 &
(crediting): TH{EE B
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-NEFE —ZFT—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of services provided* 1R AR 75 A A * 11,919 29,840

Depreciation* PrE 1,568 1,504
Minimum lease payments under UWTEEHERERE

operating leases in respect of: E
Land and buildings T RAEF 2,707 2,583
Motor vehicles AE — 111
Auditors’ remuneration % BB & 550 550
Employee benefits expense (including EEBIHY (RIEESNS
Directors’ remuneration (note 8))**: GETE
Wages, salaries, allowances TE - EZHREYH R
and benefits in kind 22,759 23,628
Equity-settled share option LA EE 2 L B
arrangements 2,469 330
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIHER
(defined contribution schemes) (REHRETED) 2,858 3,920
Severance payments Bilg e 632 155
28,718 28,083
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses, net FE 5N (Wzs),Eia %5 (88) 53
Impairment allowances on trade FEWBR SR 2 RE A (B 5E19)
receivables (note 19) 1,348 730
Impairment on other receivables H ftb & W R IB R (B 818 —
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEREE
plant and equipment HB W= (51) —
Research and development costs* o 7% K A 8% AR AR 3,368 4,646
Bank interest income |ATH B WA (503) (528)
Investment income ‘EWA (494) @a77)
Fair value gain on an investment wEWE 2 A EERE ([HiE14)
property (note 14) (284) (991)

P The cost of services provided includes depreciation and *
employee benefits expense totaling approximately HK$4,570,000
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$4,412,000), which is
also included in the respective total amount separately disclosed
above.

BETT-NE=A=+—HUIFE2RER
R A B IE T & KB 8 48 7 7 32 £ 494,570,000
TE(ZZE—=4 : 44120008 ) * ZERATTE
STA LB E 2 GRARES -
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7.

LOSS Before Tax (continued)

# The research and development costs for the year include
approximately HK$3,365,000 (2013: HK$4,646,000) relating to
employee benefits expense for research and development
activities, which is also included in the employee benefits
expense separately disclosed above.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2013: nil).
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7. BRMAIEGE @

# AEEMERAZKARFEEBEETHER
25 ) A 8 2 (& B 4@ F B & 493,365,000 7 I
—E—=F 46460008 T0)  ZEKRANIE AT
ALMBIHEBEZRBREBMAZSF

R-F-—OF=A=1+—8 AEEAER
WEAERARBRFERDHRAKE S

HR(—F—=F: &) -

Directors’ Remuneration 8 EFEMeE
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to FRNEEMESRBRBAER FHRULEEFTED
the GEM Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong FHEDI E161ERZ T -
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Fees we 300 300
Other emoluments: Hia 4 -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYR R 6,453 5,539
Equity-settled share option arrangements — LAKE 25 45 & 2 B AR #E &2k 1,190 149
Pension scheme contributions RREEHEIf 99 107
7,742 5,795
8,042 6,095

In the prior years and during the year ended 31 March
2014, three Directors were granted share options in respect
of their services to the Group under the share option
schemes of the Company, further details of which are set
out in note 27 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the
above Directors’ remuneration disclosures.

REFFERBEZE-_T-—HNF=A=1—~H
LEE  ZZESHRAAKERERSE MR
BEARABRETIERBRE £ P&
BEHNMBRR T2 - ZEBEREZ AT
BEDRERLEHETE  YCREBEHEE
BRERRER MIARFERBERRZER
EffALIEEMSWEENR -
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8.

Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive Directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive Directors
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8. EEME @

(@ BIYFHITES
FAXNTBUFATEFT 2RSSO

during the year were as follows: ™ :

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—F-AmF —FT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Mr. Tam Chun Wan BIRE LA 100 100
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine EilzRsg 100 100
Ms. Lai May Lun REMmLL 100 100
300 300

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive Directors during the year
(2013: nil).

FRAWELMEMNTFBIERNTESZHE
—E—=F )
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) EEHWE (@)

(b) Executive Directors and non-executive
Directors
The emoluments of each executive and non-executive
Director and the chief executive officer were as

HK$'000
TiEx

follows:
2014
—E—NF
Executive Directors; RTES:
M. Yip Heon Ping TR
Mr. Yip Heon Keung Emaks

Ms. Li Luyi (chief executive officer) 2B %+ (BEHTE)

Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin (resigned BN
1 on 10 December 2013) (R=B-ZF
' TZAt+RET)
' Mr. Mah Yong Sun ik
= Mr. Han Jun (appointed BERL (M=%

on 10 December 2013) +-AtBEZRA)

(b) BITEERFITES

BRTRIFNTEERERANITE ZM
oy (I

Group
r&E
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits scheme  share option Total
inkind  contributions arrangements  remuneration
#é 28 Efe  EREEC
ENRE HE:2A BREZH Wemst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TERL TAL TERL
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8.

Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive Directors and non-executive
Directors (continued)

096

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

8. EEME @
(b) BITEERIHTES (@)

2013
—ET—=F
Group
158
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled
and benefits ~ Pension scheme Share option Total
Fee inkind contributions  arrangements remuneration
H&- 28 Rife  NEREEZ
ik REDNG SR EfER M @5t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr THEL Tin THr TiEn
Executive Directors: 01ES -
Mr. Yip Heon Ping Em¥ns — 2,145 14 - 2159
Mr.Yip Heon Keung Emink — 2,725 14 - 2739
Ms. Li Luyi (chief executive officer)  Z&—%+ (BEHTE) — 669 79 149 897
- 5539 107 149 5,79
Non-executive Directors: FaTES
Mr. Mah Yong Sun Sk b - - - - -
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin B MRS — - — - —
— 5539 107 149 5,795

During the year ended 31 March 2014, two Directors
voluntarily agreed to waive their emoluments of
HK$150,000 each, totalling HK$300,000 (2013: nil).
During the year, no emoluments have been paid by
the Group to the Directors or any of the five highest
paid employees as an inducement to join, or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office.

BE_Z--NFEF=A=+—HILFE MA
EFaRAERERSS B 2B £150000%
JE - A FT300000 8L (—F—=F i f)e &
N AEEYERNESFHEANRAERSHE
BXME  RERRSIBEMARNEEH
RINAA SR BB 7 SREY R AE SRR AR (E -
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. hEE=HES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FANRAERSHEERE =R (ZE—=F:
three (2013: three) Directors, details of whose remuneration =)= EEFBE R E X HRERN
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements above. A8E A c FANEBMEB(ZE—=F: WK)
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2013: IEEEHEEEZMESEBOT -
two) non-director, highest paid employees for the year were
as follows:
Group
E
2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FAETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind ¥4 - 2B, R EYFIZ 3,860 3,704
Equity-settled share option UEREE
arrangements fE e BE 456 —
Pension scheme contributions ERE st EIH K 15 15
4,331 3,719
The number of non-Director, highest paid employees whose MEBRATHINZIFESTESFEE AR
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: LU
Group
E
2014 2013
—E-mE —Z2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHBxT FAET
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,0007% 7T & 1,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 2 2,000,000/ 7T — —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7t 2 3,500,0007% 7T 1 1
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10. Income Tax Expense/(Credit)

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. The
under-provision of Hong Kong profits tax for the year ended
31 March 2013 represented Hong Kong profits tax
calculated at the rate of 16.5% on the assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 March 2012.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries or
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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10.

FRigiif <, (E %)

HRAKERBE-_ZT—NFR-_FT—=F
A=t HUEFERAEESZBETARELE
EEZERBGEN  HABELFTEMNEHR
BB BE_T-—=F=ZA=+—BLF
E2BERBNERBRTIREEE_T——F
A=+t RLEFERBEAELZERRY G
MiZ165% 2 HEHEEBMGH - KR
ZERBBR IRBASEREEXRBREL
BRI FZEREM IRITHRERAEHREA -

Group
KEE
2014 2013
—E-MmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Current — Hong Kong: BNER —FH % -
Under-provision in prior years TFEBETR = 1
Current — Elsewhere: BIER — H & -
Charge for the year FRTH 6 6
Deferred (note 18) PEIE (MFEE18) — (74)

Total tax charged/(credited) for the year R IEZ E (K 5) 4258 6 (67)
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10. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) (continued) 10. FRIfSRAS(E%) @)
A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to loss before LEBERAATIRETENE AT KL
tax at the statutory tax rates for the jurisdictions in which AERRZ AEMERFEZERHAEBEE 2T
the Company and its principal subsidiaries operate to the B HERERMRAE MBS H > HER
tax charge at the effective tax rate, is as follows: R
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-OFE T —=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Loss before tax B A0 A & 18 (41,607) (29,444)
Tax credit at the Hong Kong BEHEBFEBRE165%
profits tax rate of 16.5% —T—ZF 1 165%)
(2013: 16.5%) AECHIEES (2,759) (2,437)
Tax credit at the Mainland China 2 B R b K S B 25.0%
statutory tax rate of 25.0% ZE—=F :250%)
(2013: 25.0%) AAEZHIEES (6,219) (3,666)
Lower applicable tax rate enjoyed REBZA 7KK BERABE
by the Group 1,801 670
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREBETRE = 1
Income not subject to tax BAERBMA (1) (407)
Expenses not deductible for tax EEL A2 620 4,434
Tax losses not recognised RERR 2 IIBEE 6,564 1,338
Total tax charged/(credited) BAREBERMERAE 2B
at the Group's effective rate S (%) 1A% 6 (67)
Beijing Xin Tong Le Sou Technology Co., Ltd. was approved I REREENEERATERL LTS ER
to qualify for the “Software Enterprise Scheme” for a five- 2E[EHEEGFE] RRALFE BT —
year period from 13 June 2011 to 31 December 2015 and 7 R e TR ) =
enjoyed an exemption of PRC corporate income tax for the —HiE RAREMEERRHNPB B
first two years and a 50% reduction for the following three FrEH - WHRHEE=FZHBRE0BEEME

years. T2 BIREE o
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11. Loss For the Year Attributable to Equity Holders 11, AAFI#EZF A AEGENEIE

|:| Z
of the Company
The consolidated loss for the year attributable to equity HE-_ZT-—NFEF=A=+—HIEE =«
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 NAEREEANEBEFEFANGABESTELD
includes a loss of approximately HK$4,487,000 (2013: 4487000 T (=T — =4 : 24110008 7T) B
HK$2,411,000) which has been dealt with in the financial RARR 2z R &EE R &S (5E280)) °

statements of the Company (note 28(b)).

12. Loss Per Share Attributable to Ordinary Equity 12, AR R T @mERIE A AR SR
Holders of the Company &5 18
The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based BRERAEGEDEBEAARERDSEG AR
on the consolidated loss for the year attributable to equity HERNERE B EHL4613008 (2T —=
holders of the Company of approximately HK$41,613,000 F 1293770008 T) R FEAE BT E BB
(2013: HK$29,377,000), and the number of ordinary shares 756,355,000 % ( == — = £ : 756,355000 % ) 5t
of 756,355,000 (2013: 756,355,000) in issue during the year. =
No diluted loss per share is disclosed as there were no HRR_E—UEER T —=F=A=+—
dilutive potential ordinary shares as at 31 March 2014 and BrEBEE#EL AR T EREETR

2013. SBEE -
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. W% - BE L&E
2014 Group
—E-|mF A5H
Office and
computer
Land and equipment,
building in furniture and
Mainland fixtures
China Leasehold RAER Motor
R ElRtz  improvements ERRE vehicles Total
TREF  HENEEE BRREE RE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TEx TEx TEn

Cost: BANE
At 1April 2013 WZE—=F
A—H
Additions NE
Disposals HE
Exchange realignment BN AR
At 31 March 2014 RZZ—EF
ZA=Z1+-A
: Accumulated depreciation R TERNEME !
and impairment; B
. . At 1 April 2013 RZF-=% Lk
A—H !
Provided for the year FREE .
Disposals HE
Exchange realignment R A%

At 31 March 2014 RZE—mF

=A=+-A

Carrying amount: RHE
At 31March 2014 RZZE—EE

=A=1+-H
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 13 W%~ BB K& |
2013 Group
—E-=F r5E
Office and
computer
Land and equipment,
building in furniture and
Mainland fixtures
China Leasehold BRER Motor
RepE A2 improvements  BEIEERE - vehicles Total
TiREF HEWEEE - BRREE B @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET FTET THET
Cost: BAE :
At 1 April 2012 RZZE—ZF
WH—H 1,385 976 12,849 5474 20,684
Additions NE — — 307 1,028 1,335
Exchange realignment EH AR — 8 134 68 210
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=F
=ZA=+—H 1,385 984 13,290 6,570 22,229

| Accumulated depreciation B FTERHME
and impairment:

At 1 April 2012 RoF-——%& . =

| mA—A 26 568 11910 3917 oM

| .ﬁp ~ Provided for the year FREE 3 265 514 690 1,504 Lot s
Exchange realignment X

At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F
=B=1+—H

Carrying amount: REE :
At 31 March 2013 RZEB—Z=%F
=A=+—H
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14. Investment Property 14. IEWYSHF
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-OFE —E=-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 1 April RMUA—H 4,490 3,444
Fair value adjustment NEEEFAE
(notes 5 and 7) (FF3E5%7) 284 991
Exchange realignment PE AR (7) 55
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 4,767 4,490

The Group's investment property is held under a long term
lease and its address is A B4t R Bk & B E PIINAHT 2,36
5R255% 127 @ 1885807 = (Unit 807, Level 7, Entrance 1,
Building 25, No. Yi 36, Dongzhimenwai Street, Dongcheng
District, Beijing, the PRC, for identification purpose only)
which is a residential unit.

The Group's investment property was revalued on 31 March
2014 by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers, not connected to the Group who have
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation was arrived at by using direct comparison method
by making reference to the comparable properties on a
price per square meter basis using market data which is
publicly available. The Group has determined that the
highest and best use of the investment property at 31
March 2014 would be for rental purpose. For strategic
reasons, the property is not being used in this manner.

AEERBERHHEOFIEZREME  Hib
#t A A B Ab R BRIk = R B P AN K 4T 2369725
SRIETE1E T80/ E © BEEEENZA® -

AEBZEEMEHMFERTERTMGEE
ABERAR (REANEELEEY 2B

REXGEN BEREEEANOCHYE A
AiEANEUDRETHEZER) R _F—
ME=A=+—HEMR BRELEIERE
BUBZEL2EALRYE  BARHERH
ZHEBBEFEGRZEF T REBET -
AEERR RZT—NF=RA=+—8"
REMEZESRREREREEERSE -
RN RS RE - ZWEILARIEL A& -
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14. Investment Property (continued) 14. IEWZE ()

Fair value adjustment of the investment property is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
All gains recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for
the year are arisen from the property held at the end of the
reporting period. There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in the prior year.

Details of the Group’s investment property and information

BREMEZRAFEBERAEINGESBAERE
B FARGKEBERTHERZME WS H
REERARBTEZOEEE - IR ZEEDN
AE EFEEAER e

R-ZTFE-—MNF=A=+t—H AEEKREYD

about the fair value hierarchy at 31 March 2014 are as ZHEBEREAATLEBESHEHE 2B
follows: T
Fair value at
31 March
2014
R=-Z—NF
=A=+-—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZRAFEEE F—E E_E F=
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FAT
Investment property RIEFRZIEEYE
in Beijing 4,767 — 4,767 —

The disclosure requirements of fair value need not be
applied in comparative information provided for periods
before initial application of HKFRS 13.

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer
into or out of Level 3.

R B R R E S B 5 B R R 1357 2 AT 8
FIREMERENBEARRATFEERER
5o

FR FEEF_EZHILREEBRAT
EBEZAE  MEAFBASBHE=FE -
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15. Investments in Subsidiaries 15. RHTB AR 2™ E
company
¥/
2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost LM KA 27,445 27,445
Due from subsidiaries FEU I B A Rl kI 382,290 383,988
Due to subsidiaries JETHS B A B3I (1,828) (1,814)
407,907 409,619
Impairment allowances VERIEREE] (393,850) (393,850)
14,057 15,769
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, FEW (FE) B AT RIE AEER . 28
interest-free and will not be repayable within the next M BARHREHREBF AR+ @A REN -

twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the management assessed the R-ZE—NER_FT—=F=ZH=+—H "
recoverable amounts of the interests in subsidiaries after EREERKERENBARICANEN BER
considering profitability, cash flow position, financial SR BB - BEEHERE RARKA
position, forecast business development and future SETERMNBARERZ 2T KB S5 - R
prospects of the subsidiaries. Based on this assessment, BHBFTE  EZRAERMNBARERZE
the Directors consider that the carrying amounts of HENKREBRBEREEEZEL KD S E
interests in subsidiaries net of impairment losses BE o

recognised approximate to their recoverable amounts.
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15. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31

15.

R B R R & E (&)

R-ZE—NF=A=+—8H
BARZEFBWT ¢

P ARBEEMH

March 2014 are as follows:

Place of  Nominal value Percentage

incorporation/ of issued of equity

registration and  ordinary share/ attributable to

operations registered capital the Company
Name EMRYL/ HME  EBRILZER/ ADEEL Principal activities
£ EENE HIMEFZEE BEADL TEREH

(2014 and 2013)

(Z2-DMERK

—B-Zf)
Prosten (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$21,025 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 21025% T REEK

RBRAMES/BR

Prosten Technology Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
REMERAR LA B 1,000,000 7T REER
Prolink Technology Limited Hong Kong HKS$5 100 Investment holding
FARBRAR LA BB 5B REER
Worldly Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Investment holding
Ma BB QA &k 1000078 7T REER
Welltop Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 Investment holding
BERERRRA B 1,000 7T REER
Prosten Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* PRC/Mainland China US$3,500,000 100 Provision of wireless mobile
REBBRARE (L8)BRAF RE/RE R 35000005 7 value-added services

Unison Networking Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*  PRC/Mainland China

BIERERMRE (L8 BRAR" R/ B A
Beijing Xin Tong Le Sou Technology Co Ltd.* PRC/Mainland China
ERERERMBAERR A hE /R E R

> Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC

Law.

# Registered as a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise.

Except for Prosten (BVI) Limited, all other subsidiaries are

indirectly held by the Company.

US$1,500,000
1,500,000% 7T

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,000

RERGBHEERS

100 Provision of wireless mobile
value-added services
R ERZHILERS

100 Provision of wireless mobile
value-added services
REEGEHLERY

# RIBFEEZEEM I EBERSE

# AfzheBERE -

K& Prosten (BVI) Limitedsh « BT & H b K B A &)
HHARNARBERE -
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15. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

10/

REMRERERDA
—E-NFEFR

15.

KRB AR & E (&)

ERFIRESRREIBEREAFELZER
IBRAEEEEFEZITET D 2 AR
MERR -EERR  JHEMHERRZ
HERSREAENTTE -

16. Available-for-sale Investments 16. AIEHEKRE
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F-mFE —T=
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl TH8T
Club debentures, at cost SES - WA 831 831

As at the end of the reporting period, club debentures were
stated at cost as the Directors are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant. The
Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near

RmERAR @MESFERAINE  RER
NEEBEMGFZAESEERN  EERAA
FEEREASFEHE AKEEERTAH
KhEZFES

future.
17. Goodwill 17 i
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E O —F—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Cost:
Acquisitions through business BREBSFBEE R
combinations and at 31 March R=A=+—H 188 188
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEiHREEIE :
Impairment losses recognised and EERBEEE R
at 31 March R=ZA=+—H (188) (188)

Carrying amounts:
At 31 March

R=RA=+—H
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17. Goodwill (continued) 17. B2 @)
Impairment testing on goodwill BEZRENR
Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing FEDARERR B DB E R RET
purposes to the cash-generating (“CGU’) of design and BErEeE —HeES ﬁu (TBHeEESE

distribution of mobile games. The Group tests goodwill for
impairment at each reporting period, or more frequently if
there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Directors had
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU that total
impairment loss in the amount of approximately
HK$188,000 (2013: HK$188,000) was recognised as the
recoverable amount of the CGU was less than the carrying
amount of the CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based
on value-in-use calculations. The calculation used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
Directors covering a five-year period. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations were regarding to a
discount rate of 10.16% and a zero growth rate. The
Directors estimated discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the CGU. The growth rates
were based on past performance and its expectations for
the development of the market.

fr]) AEBRSERSHEHELTRE
AH - XHETRBEREEAERE AE
FREHETRERR

BE_ZT-NMF=-A=+t—HLFE E=F
BEEERSELABN2AKRE SR BARNE
BRSEL BN 2 AIREISRENEREE -
WO R ERBEARD1880008 T (=T —
=4 : 188000/ 7T) °

ReELESBUzA O SEREAEETE
EETE  c BRGTEEFERANKESHERH
hAEZHBEEAREECZRERETEN -
REEFEEZEZRR TP R1016%.2 1R
ERTRER - EENRARRET TS Y
ERKEEE A RESELAEN TR
Bl 2 BATLL BT IRE - MRERIZBAE
FEARHEEMIGER CEHHFHE o
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18. Deferred Tax 18. IRIEFIIA
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during EEHESELREEREANZSEMT ¢

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax asset BELEREEE
Deferred tax asset arising from losses available for AAEREARRERT EN 2 BEMEEZ
offsetting against future taxable profits. EETGIAE E o
Group
rER
2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
At 1 April REA—H 1,396 1,303
Deferred tax credited to profit or FARFTABREREZELERE
loss during the year (note 10) (f7E10) = 74
Exchange realignment ME N B (2) 19
At 31 March W=A=+—8 1,394 1,396
Deferred tax liability EERBEAERE
Deferred tax liability related to withholding taxes of R ARTIERF 2 B 2 BLEFHIEEE -
unremitted earnings.
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—F-mFE =T =f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FET
At 1 April RmA—A 499 493
Exchange realignment PE 5 3% — 6

At 31 March R=A=+—8H 499 499
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Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax liability (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the respective jurisdictions of the foreign investors.

For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated after 1 January
2008.
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18.

IR AE R IE ()

ELEBEEE (&)
BERBEZDEMSHE AR F HAH
R ZINE R ERBIMNEEEEIR 2K E &
WI10%TEMH - BREREHR—"EZEN\F— A —
LW TERAR-ET+FE+ A=+
—B%&ZEF - fifiF B A EEEZ TN
BEFMBREFHRIAEMBIELY - AJsEe
FEINESR Z FEMBL=R -

REBEZERB K[ > Bt - KEEEAES
R BEAMKIZZHMBRRE T /N\F—
A—BRELEZBNDIK B EBMBHK

Trade Receivables 19. EUERK
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-OFE = =fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Trade receivables, gross JE Wt BR B 4B BB 6,311 14,655
Impairment allowances VERERE& (1,114) (1,224)
Trade receivables, net JE W BR B EE 5,197 13,431

The Group's trade receivables, which generally have credit
terms of one month to three months (2013: one month to
three months) pursuant to the provisions of the relevant
contracts, are recognised based on services rendered and
carried at the original invoice amount, and an estimate of
impairment of trade receivables is made and deducted
when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.

REBBESHNZIRTE  AEBEZEKERR—
REAE-—EAZ=EA(ZF—=F: —@HA
E=AA)ZEEH - RUERERE RN
RIGETFARRBARRIGEZSRINE L&
FJ BE S BE 2 BR[O B 1F R MR FORLE B 5T
I F IAFAER ©
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19. Trade Receivables (continued) 19. FEUWERFK (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk as about 76% (2013: 28%) of the
balance represented a receivable from a customer with the
largest trade receivable at the year end. The trade
receivables balances as at 31 March 2014 contributed by T EUNBE 4 4 B95% ( — T — = 4F : 55%) o
the five largest customers of the year was 95% (2013: 55%). RNREBEBBIZH@EANEEZEEHEEER
Concentration of credit risk is managed by control over ZERM - EUNEBRER AEEH L TR -
credit term over individual customer. Trade receivables are

unsecured and non-interest-bearing.

RIBEBK - AEEEATAETIEERR -
BE BA76%( =B — =4 : 28%) 2 kB AR
1 [ 0 M B K IO M B B 2 B 5 2 I o A4
ERAEFPEER_T-—ME=A=+—A

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of
impairment allowances, based on the month in which the
services were rendered, is as follows:

7R & 8] JE A BR T (A HBR R (B B 4 R AR B 4R 1t
R Afn) 2 BREk DT a0~

Group

rEH
2014 2013
—E-mEFE =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Within 3 months =EARN 3,433 9,943
4 to 6 months HE N E A 922 2,020
7 to 12 months +tE+ @A 670 927
Over 1 year HB A — 172 541
Trade receivables, net JE W BR 57 0F 58 5,197 13,431

The movements in the Group’s impairment allowances of AEBRWRFUREBERE ZEFBHNOT ¢

trade receivables are as follows:

Group

AEM
2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
At 1 April KU A—H 1,224 488
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 2 MR RMEE B ([iE7) 1,348 730
Amount written off as uncollectible A A BT Uk [e1 i 8 2 SRR (1,459) —
Exchange realignment ME 5, B 1 6

At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,114 1,224
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19. Trade Receivables (continued) 19. FEUBR R (&)

The above allowances for impairment of trade receivables
are allowances for individually impaired trade receivables
with carrying amounts before allowances of approximately
HK$1,114,000 (2013: HK$1,224,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables are considered to be less likely
to recover by management after considering the credit
quality of those individual customers based on their
settlement history.

An aged analysis of the Group'’s trade receivables that are
not considered to be impaired, based on the due date, is as
follows:

bt R UK BR R 2 BB BB B L E B B R E B
WEESIEH 2 Bt ERBR2EEENA
1,114,000 75 (—Z & — =4 : 12240003 7T) ©
REEZSHENEFERBALE LR ZE
Bk EEERBTAAAEYEEH
BB AR W R -

PR 3 BB E 2 2N 5 18 B W AR SR 15 21 B
BZRREDITIT :

Group

rEE
2014 2013

—E-mE ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Not yet past due I 7K #80 HR 1,208 5,404
Past due but not impaired: #HEAERRE

1to 3 months past due BEEmB—= = A 2,607 4,539
4 to 6 months past due [mEa e P! 775 2,020
7 to 12 months past due BEaftE=+ @A 435 927
Past due for over 1 year BEafBe—F 172 541
Trade receivables, net JE W BR RS ER 5,197 13,431

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good repayment record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are
of the opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

EARERRENEBURERTELAEEER
IERFGLENBYUEP AR - RIBAELR
EXRR ARZKTRBIEREERIEE
REg  BNKRAA2EKE - HBAHZ
ERBIERERE -

ZN LRI Rl S R RS L R R
HEMEEREERE -
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20. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 20, FERT3RIB -« 5] & & H b jE W 2k 18

Group Company
rE NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NEFE —T—=F ZE-—NFE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT
Prepayments TEFFIE 636 1,314 200 148
Deposits and 7@ & E b FEUEUR
other receivables 7,570 9,552 — —
8,206 10,866 200 148
Less: Current portion W ORENE Y (7,835) (10,866) (200) (148)
Non-current portion ERENE 371 — — —
21. Due from/(to) Directors 21. FEW () ESE 2718
Particulars of amounts due from the Directors, disclosed RIBETBRTEHF16BIEEEZEIKRES
pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies HIB Y EBHOT
Ordinance, are as follows:
Group
rE
Maximum
amount
outstanding
31 March during the 1 April
2014 year 2013

—ZE—MF EFRBEs _—T—=
=B=+—H HEKEESE mA—Qf

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTHxT FET
Mr. Yip Heon Ping ErFLEE — 513 156
Mr. Yip Heon Keung HEmogdkE — 737 499
— 655

The amounts due from/(to) Directors are unsecured, U (MM ESZREAELR REREA

interest-free and repayable on demand. RERKEEE o
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22. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged 2 HERESZEEYREERETXR
Deposits
Group Company
rE AAFE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mFE —F=-F ZE-NFE —ZT-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET T T
Cash and bank balances IR & MR1T4 88 10,075 36,543 4 54
Time deposits EHTFR 2,745 15,247 — —
12,820 51,790 4 54
Less: Pledged time deposits & : Fh iR 17 B 17
for banking facilities ZE BRIF R (250) (12,740) = —
Cash and cash equivalents IR& MIRESEY 12,570 39,050 4 54

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits held by subsidiaries of the
Company denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$11,459,000 (2013: HK$50,442,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

At 31 March 2013, pledged deposits represent deposits
pledged to banks to secure bank loan and other banking
facilities granted to the Group. The pledged deposit for the
bank loan was released upon full repayment during the
year. The pledged deposit remained at 31 March 2014
represented deposit pledged to other banking facilities.

AR BARRBERRUARBTEZ
& R ERTT 4 DA K OE BRTF 3K 49 411,459,000
BT (ZZT— =4 : 504420008 ) - AR
A EREBRAEMER  HRESPEAM
ZHONEEBIED  UARGEE SERMNES
BRE AEEEEEBEREETINER
PEBZBTBARBEL B AEMEE -

ROEFRREFARTEANEEEZ D
MEFE - EHERAERNBEHRAHM—BE
“EAATE BIFAEBERZHEESFTEM
WA CERERERNEFR - R
THHBLREEREREREFRAMLHLED
REERLEAFBRIFZRTT -

RoB—Z=ZF=HA=+~H eE#F5HE
EEFPTFTRIUDNERTFAKREZRITER
REMBITEERE - FR - BERARTER
ZEERERCRBREERREL KT
—HAF=A=1t - BZEERFRGKEED
ERTEMBRITEEREZFR -
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23. Trade Payables 23. FETERFK

24,

205

An aged analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on
the month in which the services were rendered, is as
follows:

AEBZEMNER(RERERENANR) 2
Rk AT

Group

rEH
2014 2013

—E—-mF —ZF—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Within 3 months =@ AR 50 3,945
4 t0 6 months MZESE A 59 5,057
7 t0 12 months +tE=+ @A 3,582 165
Over 1 year Bl —F 6,261 3,467
9,952 12,634

Other Payables and Accruals

H\ﬁﬂﬁ‘éﬁmlﬁﬁﬁ D+FA

Group Ccompany
AEME BN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE -—T-=-F CZT-NFE -—T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT FHT FHT
Other payables EH b B RIB 3,798 3,674 — —
Accruals fEst R IE 7,657 5,769 1,600 1,292
11,455 9,443 1,600 1,292
Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowing, Secured 25. EEHKETRRITEE

At 31 March 2013, the Group had a secured bank borrowing
with remaining balance of approximately HK$11,400,000.
The bank borrowing was repayable within one year, bore
interest at HIBOR plus 2% per annum and was secured by a
pledge deposit of approximately HK$12,500,000. During the
year ended 31 March 2014, the bank loan was fully repaid.

R-FE-—Z=ZF5=ZA=+—8 ' A5EHEN
RITEE 2 H L /1140000078 7T - SRITHE
EAR-—FRNERYBFRBBRITAER
BN2EEE - B 49125000007 T2 E#HF
RIERER - ROTERERBE_T—NF=
A=+t - BLFEEZHEE -
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Share Capital 26. BN
2014 2013
ZE-OF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Authorised: EE
2,500,000,000 (2013: 2,500,000,000)  2,500,000,000 1% %= & T {E0.1078 7T 2 @A
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each —ZF— =4 : 2500,000,0004% ) 250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR
756,355,000 (2013: 756,355,000) 756,355,000 % & I EI1E0.1078 7T 2 & @ i
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each —EFE— =4 : 756,3550000% ) 75,635 75,635

There was no change in the share capital of the Company
during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

Share premium

There was no change in the share premium of the Company
during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. Further
details are included in note 28 to the financial statements.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are
included in note 27 to the financial statements.

Share Option Schemes

The Company operates a share option scheme which is
currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
Company'’s original share option scheme was approved by
the shareholders on 7 March 2000 (the “2000 Scheme”),
and was terminated and replaced by a share option
scheme approved by the shareholders on 9 April 2002 (the
“2002 Scheme”). The 2002 Scheme was terminated and
replaced by a new share option scheme approved by the
shareholders on 5 August 2011 (the “New Scheme”). The
options granted under the 2000 Scheme, which were not
exercised or terminated or expired previously, became
expired on 21 August 2011.

27.

HE_ZE-—MNEFER_ZE—=F=A=+—H
IFEE - ARTZBAL WED -

IR 43 % B
BE_Z-NOFER_F—=%=A=+—H
LEE  ARBZROEELEZLE - 3 —
ST BRI MRM S -

B
ARRBRESZHFBERYHHRRME
24

& I E AT 2

ARBIRAEBAIARREMN 2 BRETE
EEZBRERHAEE RN EZFHR
Bl ER2EE BRRNR_ZTTZTF=H
TtAREZARRRERERESE (=TT
BEFEDERLEEERRR_ZFT_FN
ANLB#EZ - BBREFS (T 2T _F
SEDBR - ZET_FFHEAERIERER
RRZZT——FN\AaB#AEz —BHER
RETE ([#Et8 ) MK - RE-_FTTF5
FRBERBERTERRLENE D ZBRK
BER-_Z——F N \A-_+—HEW-
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued)

A summary of the share option schemes is set out below:

(a)

(b)

2002 Sscheme

The 2002 Scheme became effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 23 April 2002. Eligible
participants of the 2002 Scheme include all Directors
and employees of the Group, suppliers, customers,
consultants who provided services to the Group,
shareholders of the subsidiaries of the Group and
joint venture partners. Under the 2002 Scheme, the
Directors may, at their sole discretion, grant to any
eligible participants options to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company. The exercise period of the
options granted is determinable by the Directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends
in any event not later than 10 years from the
respective date when the share options are granted,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
The 2002 Scheme was terminated and replaced by
the New Scheme with effect from 5 August 2011. The
options granted under the 2002 Scheme remain
exercisable within their respective exercise periods.

New Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 5 August 2011 (the “2011 AGM"), an ordinary
resolution was passed by the shareholders to
approve and adopt the New Scheme in place of the
2002 Scheme.
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(b)

—EE_F5E

TR FHEE R _FMNA =+
—HRABEKR A+ F T —F
ElvEER2HEEREASEEMA
EEZREE HER BF BAKH
RERBZER AEBWHB AR ZK
REEECERNY RBE-ZZZT_F5t
g EZTEEMBACREMRE ER
SHEERLERE URBAQAZE
IR - IEEREZITEHRBESE
- WRETHEBEERRK  REEM
BRATHREARELERE S HEHEH
BiRERT T EM - AR RAIKRLE 2K
XiRE e —EE_FHEER_T—
—ENAREBRIERAFEIERNK - B
BT _Frral R BRERES
BITEBHADAITE -

et &l

EARAR-_Z——FN\AABETZ
BRRBFAS(T-_Z——FRRBEFAKX
gL REBE-HETBERER #t
ERRAFFABARK -_EZT —F58) -
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued)
(b) New Scheme (continued) (b)

27. BIRESTE @\
&l (@)

The New Scheme became effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 10 August 2011. Eligible
participants of the New Scheme include all Directors
and employees of the Group, suppliers, customers,
consultants who provided services to the Group,
shareholders of the subsidiaries of the Group and
joint venture partners. Under the New Scheme, the
Directors may, at their sole discretion, grant to any
eligible participants options to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company at the highest of (i) the closing
price of shares of the Company on GEM as stated in
the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company on GEM as stated in the
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company'’s
share. The offer of a grant of options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of an option. The exercise period of the
options granted is determinable by the Directors,
which commences after the date of offer with a
certain vesting period and ends in any event not later
than 10 years from the respective date when the
share options are granted, subject to the provisions
for early termination thereof.

The total number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the New Scheme is an amount equivalent to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of the 2011 AGM.

The maximum number of shares to be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
relevant class of shares of the Company in issue from
time to time.

Mg E—T-——FN \NATHEABKE
Mo SHTEFAEHZAERLESE
BRERAEEMEEERESRS - HER -
BEP  RAEERERB ZER K&
BHBARZERRAERLERH - R
B e EERAEREBERE REM
REMSEEROBRE  ARINE
M A RS A RER EAAIE
BIERZARARMHDEHE : NEERR
MEH AR AERXS ABIAEHER
EBXRLEMAINARBBRMDERZERZFH
W E : il R RO EEZER (A
ReaERE)RBARAZERR - &
MBRLBEREZENZHRAZN A HRE
Aot —BEAR-EZAREBRERAX
NREBAREBIET FIRLBREZ
TEMRAEFETE YR EHAHEK
M YEETHEESH  REEAEBR
THREARBEHBREZ SHB AT
T FREm - AR L Z XA
MR -

AT R IEF &t 8 R th 2 P BB A
RARERETZRMOAH  EHEE
ERBE_ZT——FRRBFAREET
BH2 AR B B&ITRG Z10% °

RITEREH 8 R AKE Z S HEA
BREAEMEORIDRITEZRAE R
ARETEZBERERS TRERETZ
Bh&=8E  aATREBEETIRKREE
T2 AR A A R RIRD 230% °
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued)

(b) New Scheme (continued) (b)

The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without

prior approval from the Company's shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company'’s share capital and with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company'’s shareholders.
The New Scheme does not provide for any minimum
period for holding of options or any performance
target before exercise of options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

—E-NFEFR

27. BIRESTE (|

et (@)

WER+ =18 B AR AT 3% F{E A A 2
BRER S 2R EE  ERELRDT
MR E LI AR FEBEBAQTRE
MEREFEEEITRND Z21% - HTFTEERE
NBUIATESZEREMBEEAR
A IR 2 0.1% K 48 {5 {8.%15,000,0007%8 7T
W/BE S ER D R BRI o et
IR TEE (T A BRE 2 &R HR AT
FERENZRREBE -

EREY A TRHAAZDRBEEINEERX
G LEREZHER -

The following share options were outstanding under the FER BE_ZEZZE-_FF2ARFFE 2HAK
2002 Scheme and the New Scheme during the year: ITEEREREMT
2014 2013
—Z-mF —T—=F
Number of Number of
shares shares
Weighted issuable Weighted issuable
average under the average under the
exercise options exercise options
price RIBHE R price AR 5 B s e
InfEEY AETZ pIlIEs R AlEE(T 2
TEE iidvin: gE| 1B BB
HK$ per share ‘000  HKS$ per share ‘000
BT (8R) T BT (BAR) TFix
At 1 April REA—H 0.38 31,790 0.41 30,290
Granted during the year ER#% 0.17 *28,000 0.16 2,900
Lapsed during the year — FE X%k 0.48 (480) 0.53 (1,400)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 0.28 59,310 0.38 31,790

Total consideration of HK$6 was received for the share options
granted on 5 December 2013 that enable the grantees to
subscribe for up to 28,000,000 shares of the Company under the
New Scheme.

Total consideration of HK$15 was received for the share options
granted on 27 March 2013 that enable the grantees to subscribe
for up to 2,900,000 shares of the Company under the New
Scheme.

HRoE—=F+-_AOHENFETRHZE
BB KBAREOET  EARATRERS
28,000,000 A8 2 & AR ©

HR_B—ZF=ZA_TLHEHNFETRLZ
BRED WERAREISE T - AR AR RE
%% 2,900,000/ & X BIRL A7 ©
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued) 27. BERREETE (@)
The exercise prices, exercise periods and number of shares MRERERAR EBIRE T T — F:12| R #FH st
issuable in respect of the share options outstanding under B 2EMARITEBREEB 2ITERE - 1T{EH
the 2002 Scheme and the New Scheme as at the end of the PREAIEIT2RMHEBBE LT :

reporting period are as follows:

2014
—E-mF
Number of shares
issuable under the options
‘000 Exercise price*
RIBBRETREITZ  HKS per share

R EE TEE* Exercise period
F A& B (BR) TEHR
300 0.100 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014

—EENFE=A=-+ X HE=E-—NE=A=+FHH

700 0.170 10 May 2006 to 9 May 2016
—EEREREA+THE=E—-R~ERANA

9,200 0.410 3 April 2008 to 2 April 2018
—EEN\FNA=HEZ-ZE—-\FW™AZ=H

2,000 0.100 24 June 2005 to 23 June 2015
—EERFAAtTHAZE=ZE-HEFA~A=-1+=H

1,000 0.380 29 June 2006 to 28 June 2016
—EERERAZTABEZZE—XREXNAZ=Z+NH

5,000 0.396 1 October 2008 to 5 July 2017
—EENFE+A—HE=ZE—tHEtAEH

200 0.417 3 June 2008 to 2 June 2018
—EENFARA=HE=Z—N\FXAZH

5,560 0.660 9 February 2010 to 8 February 2020
—E-TF_RBhBRE-ZE=-ZTF_ANA

4,550 0.270 23 November 2010 to 22 November 2020
—E-EF+—HA-+=HE=EF=-Z2F+-—H=+=H

2,800 0.162 27 March 2013 to 26 March 2023
—E-—=F=A-t+tHE-E-=F=HA=1+7H

28,000 0.165 5 December 2013 to 4 December 2023

B+ -ARRAE=-ZE-_=F+=-HWEH

59,310




Notes to the Financial Statements
B IR R M 7T

121

REMRERERDA
—E-NFEFR

31March2014 = Z—MFE=A=+—H

27. Share Option Schemes (continued)

2013
—E—=F
Number of shares
issuable under the options
‘000 Exercise price*

B ERT 2 (|

RIZEEAIRER 1T HK$ per share
[ EhgE] TR E Exercise period
Fix BT (FR) 1712 BAPR
300 0.100 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014
TTMFE=A-+ A AE_T—NF=A=+HAAH
700 0.170 10 May 2006 to 9 May 2016
—EERFERATHE-Z—XFRHANAE
9,200 0.410 3 April 2008 to 2 April 2018
—EEN\FUA=HE-_ET—-/\FHNHAZ-H
2,000 0.100 24 June 2005 to 23 June 2015
AFERNAZ+TNHEZE_ZE—RFA=-+=H
1,000 0.380 29 June 2006 to 28 June 2016
TEERFANAC —f—j—LEl:l:—z_ NENHAZ ‘f’)\El
5,000 0.396 1 October 2008 to 5 July 2017
—EENF+A—HEZE—tFtAAH
200 0.417 3June 2008 to 2 June 2018
—EEN\FRA=ZHE_ZE—A\FAZH
5,840 0.660 9 February 2010 to 8 February 2020
—E-EF-_ANBEE=ZE-_ZTF-ANH
4,650 0.270 23 November 2010 to 22 November 2020
2 ZEF+—A=-+=RAE=ZE=-_TF+—A=+=H
2,900 0.162 27 March 2013 to 26 March 2023
—=F=A=-+ttHEZZE-_=F=AH=1+/<H

31,790

g The exercise prices of the share options are subject to
adjustments in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the Company'’s share capital.

The fair value of share options granted for the year ended
31 March 2014 was approximately HK$2,813,000 (2013:
HK$325,000). Including the share options granted in prior
and current years, a total equity-settled share option
expense of approximately HK$2,469,000 (2013: HK$380,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2014.

o BRETEETRERRRARBEITIAAF
B BB E) T IAHE -

REBE-_Z—NF=-A=Z+—HLEFERH
Zﬁhﬁz NFBEL 528130008 T (=%
—:E-&wm%m)ﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁfﬁmi
EREZERER  BZ —E=Z/=
r— HtiﬁZ%éEA&ﬁmiﬁ% SR
NERZUESEECBRERAIARNA
2,469,000/ 7T (= Z — =4 : 38000078 7T ) °
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued) 27. BERREETE (@)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, with
reference to the valuation performed by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers, using a binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

PN IR I B R 2 R 2 A T BT
SEBUABRELEENRETIHERA
A 1T 2 fh {8 08 PR — TR 2 B 1 M7 48
AR T W RS HERES B
AR B - TRIIBBRAF RS AR
B

Share options  Share options

granted on granted on
5 December 27 March
2013 2013

R-E—= RZE—=
+=ZAEB =A=-++tH
BREzBERE KEZBERE
Dividend yield (%) AR B E %) 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility (%) T8 B R R ( 100.57% 103.99%
Historical volatility (%) JEE 52 ) 18 % 100.57% 103.99%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 41 32 gz 1) 28 (%) 2.2% 1.22%
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) In#EFHIRE (BT (FR%)) 0.163 0.38

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the T8 HA R 8 e B {RR 5% JFE 52 U2 iR ) JE R AR 2R 8 2

historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

For equity-settled share-based payments with parties other
than employees, the Group has rebutted the presumption
that the fair values of the services received can be
estimated reliably as in the opinion of the Directors, the fair
value of the services cannot be reliably measured.
Accordingly, the Group measured the services received
from these parties, with reference to the fair values of the
share options granted using the binomial option pricing
model, at the date these parties rendered related services
to the Group.

No other feature of the share options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

MR —ERERGERBA -

MEBEBIAINZ BT 2 A s E RIARD
RAZNZME  BREZTARRBZIAF
BEXL KGR EMFTE  AEECHEBME
RT52 A FEEER bt 2 BR&K - Bt
ASEREETAARBERTABRBER -
S2REA_BANEEERABLZERE
BhELLAVEER FAEXZSAETER
Z AR o

AEATEERMEINAMRLERE ZH
& e
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
aggregated outstanding share options that enable the
grantees to subscribe for up to 59,310,000 (2013:
31,790,000) shares in the Company under the 2002 Scheme
and the New Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 59,310,000 (2013:
31,790,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$5,931,000 (2013:
HK$3,179,000) and share premium of HK$10,605,100 (2013:
HK$8,965,100).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had aggregate outstanding share options that
enable the grantees to subscribe for up to 28,510,000
shares under the 2002 Scheme and 30,750,000 shares
under the New Scheme, the underlying shares in respect of
which represented approximately 3.8% and 4.1%,
respectively, of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date.

Reserves

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, a
portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
which are registered in the PRC has been transferred
to the statutory reserve fund which is restricted as to
use.
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B ERT 2 (|

RBMEHR  E_TE _Fr &8 RFFET

KA 72h$ﬂﬁ%h%uﬁﬁ%&ATw
B8 & £59,310000 f% ( = = — = 4F : 31,790,000
i) A 2 &R 1D mﬁ$ R)IR B 2 PR AR 4R
B 2ETEZESARTEBRESESHE
759,310,000 f% ( = & — = £ : 31,790,000 % )
AN A BB AN E AR - B8 S AR 285,931,000 7 7T
(ZZ— =% 31790008 7t ) & K7 % B
10,605,100/ 7 (—ZZ — =4 : 8,965,1007% 7T ) °

RZEHBEHRRELERD  RE-_ZTT -

FarE RFarE 0 AR B Z M ARITIE AR E
A (F AR A A R D Bl A i % 28,510,000 A%
B 15 &30,750000]&1&1’7} HEr#H &2 B8R
DEARRTIRE HE ZE1TRHD D 54 A38%
R A4.1% o

{7& 1

(@ =*%£H

ZIS‘%IEAZliiF*&L?EiF*ZEﬁ%@%E\
HEHEANGERaEHRET -

RAR A BIARREA DI AR BI -
BaEMzMBE AT 2D
EEREBEEES  AEAX
il o

REBRF
A BEERE
RZRETER
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28. Resernves (continued)

28. @t (&)

(b) Company (b) E2AF
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
BRRER BRERE ZiTER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
At 1 April 2012 NZZE——FmMA—H 372,468 7,757 (439,150) (58,925)
Loss and total comprehensive R EE &2 EHR X
expense for the year @z — — (2,417) (2,411)
Equity-settled share option D mEE v R
arrangements ZHE — 380 — 380
Transfer of share option B IS 3 L e e 3¢
reserve on the forfeited BIRERE
share options — (344) 344 —
At 31 March 2013 and RZE—=F=A=+—H
at 1 April 2013 N—E-=F/MA—H 372,468 7,793 (441,217) (60,956)
Loss and total comprehensive R EE &2 ER
expense for the year Fo — — (4,487) (4,487)
Equity-settled share option AR 48 7 BE PR
arrangements 7 — 2,469 — 2,469
Transfer of share option FEE IS R iy 3 L B e B¢
reserve on the forfeited B
share options — (227) 221 —
At 31 March 2014 R-Z-—NFE=A=+—H 372,468 10,041 (445,483) (62,974)

(i)

Under the Companies Law (2001 Revision) of
the Cayman lIslands, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to its
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

RERESEERTE(ZTZE—F
BRIA) - ARA Z B ERA
DR TR - R BB EBIK
BREEHR ARBIAREENA
BEBEETINRZELR -
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28. Reserves (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, in the opinion of
the Directors, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders.

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of share options granted which are yet to
be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will be transferred to
the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, and will be transferred to
accumulated losses should the related options
expire or be forfeited.

(c) Dividends
The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: nil).
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29. Commitments

(a)

(b)

Operating lease arrangements

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three
years (2013: leased certain office properties and
motor vehicles for terms ranging from one to three
years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-
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29, HEIE

@)

ReBERY
AEEREBRKEHETHAEHE TH
REME -PEZHELEBRA/E —
E=FAFE(ZZE—=F: HEETH¢
REMERABERA—E=ZFTF) -

RBEHR  AKRERBETAHELE
HEARATHRIAZ ARKERE

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: FRBEEMT -
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—F-mFE —F=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Land and buildings: T REE
Within one year —F N 3,174 1,987
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFLF(BREEMSF) 936 294
4,110 2,281
Motor vehicles: a8
Within one year —F RN — 15
— 15
4,110 2,296

The Company has no operating lease arrangement at
the end of the reporting period (2013: nil).

Capital commitments

The Group and the Company has no significant capital
commitment at the end of the reporting period (2013:
nil).

(b)

ARARBEPRRL EEAKLEEER
H(ZF—=F:8&)-

BEXRAE
AEERARARBERRALEEMNE
REXAFE(ZT—=F: &) -
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30. Related Party Transactions 30. BEAEALRS
Details of compensation of key management personnel of EHRAERZTEETEAB 2B BEH N
the Group are included in note 8 to the financial statements XM ES » S ERENT NRERAIER LT
which do not constitute connected transactions or HAHEABZ SR FERETS -
continuing connected transactions under the GEM Listing
Rules.
31. Financial Instruments by Category 3. LERE D zERIT A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REBERR SRR TAZREBERAT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Financial assets SREE
Group Company
rEE KAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —FT-=F ZEBE-NF —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET

Loans and receivables: EXREWE :
Financial assets included s+t ARMIB AT 2

in investments REZEREE

in subsidiaries (note 15) (M$5E15) — — 15,885 17,583
Trade receivables JiE Wt BR X 5,197 13,431 = —
Financial assets included 5+ AET 4 K H fib fg Ut

in deposits and other Rz eREE

receivables (note 20) (F$5E20) 7.570 9,552 — —
Due from Directors EWE E 2B — 655 — —
Pledged deposits e RERN 250 12,740 — —
Cash and cash equivalents ¥4 MIR4SZEY 12,570 39,050 4 54

25,587 75,428 15,889 17,637

Available-for-sale AHHERE

investments:
Available-for-sale AHfHERE

investments 831 831 — —

831 831 = —

26,418 76,259 15,889 17,637
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31. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 3. E\FE D zemMT A @)
Financial liabilities WA
Group company
KEH PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mEFE —FT—=F ZZE-NF —ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiET FBT FHET
Financial liabilities REBERARTIERZ
at amortised cost: SRBE:
Financial liabilities included =t AR M B Q7] 2
in investments HEZERAE
in subsidiaries (note 15) (BFsE15) — — 1,828 1,814
Trade payables FETER 5K 9,952 12,634 — —
Financial liabilities included &+ A E th & (< 7018 2
in other payables JEETFRIBZ & B
and accruals (note 24) B & (FizE24) 8,988 6,296 1,600 1,292
Due to Directors ERNESZFIE 535 — — -
Interest-bearing bank FFERITEE
borrowing = 11,400 — —
19,475 30,330 3,428 3,106

32. FairValue and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 32 €@ T A Z A AFEEM AT EE

Instruments ERERE

The Company did not have any financial instruments RZZE—NME=ZA=+—H ' ARABWEFT
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2014. A AFEEFEZEMIA -

Management has assessed that except as set out below, BRTIXHEIEN BEEEFTEAEREARN
the fair values of all financial assets and liabilities of the RAlZEeMEERBEZAFEBREE
Group and the Company are reasonably approximate to FHBEAEES FEZRAR%EIAEAER
their carrying values largely due to the short term maturities BA A BN B o 552 B B 75 S 2% BT 5 16 B A% A it
of these instruments. For fair value of available-for-sale HEREZATEE RZTE—WOFEF=A=
investments, please refer to note 16 to the financial +—HB eMIAZAFEEADNRERSEZ
statements. As at 31 March 2014, the fair values of financial ME - HERERUAERZETIAZAFEER
instruments for which fair value are disclosed below which EMERZERDIE  HEWOT -

are classified based on their nature, characteristics and
risks and the level of fair value hierarchy of these
instruments.
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32. FairValue and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial ~ 32.

SBIAZATEERATFEE
%:_

Instruments (continued) WA ®)
Group
rEHE
Carrying
Hierarchy values Fair values
EMEE SREE AFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets included in depositsand 5t AGI & M E b Level 2
other receivables (note 20), EWREZ SR £
non-current portion B (MsE20) -
SEMENER 371 363

Level 2:  Fair value measurement using significant observable inputs

The fair value of non-current portion of deposits has been
calculation by discounting the expected future cash flows
using the risk-free rate (key input).

The disclosure requirements of fair value need not be
applied in comparative information provided for periods
before initial application of HKFRS 13.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2013: nil) and
no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013: nil).

F_E: AT EEFERAEATERBAE

REZERDBEO 2 RAFEBELERBERR
ME(EZ2HAE)MBERPRKESRET

st
B o
A

B R R BB B % B 3R 2E R 13 5% 2 AT A
iR RERNBEARRATEERER

Eo

FR F-EBEEF_EsHLREEBRY
BEZFAE(ZZE—=F:8) TREBEA
KEHE=—E(ZF—=F:§)-
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. MR REREBZE &R

Policies

At 31 March 2014, major financial instruments of the Group
included trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
cash and bank deposits, trade payables, certain other
payables and accruals and those of the Company included
amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries and accruals. The Group
and the Company have various other financial assets and
liabilities such as amounts due from/(to) Directors and/or
available-for-sale investments. At 31 March 2013, the
Group's financial instruments also included a pledged bank
loan.

The principal risk management objective of the Group and
the Company is to manage the risks associated to the
unpredictability of financial markets in a prudent manner.
They are measured by degree of such risks and their effects
to the financial performance and financial positions of the
Group and the Company.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the
Group’s and the Company's policy that no trading in
financial instruments shall be undertaken. The management
seeks to minimise the adverse effects of such risks to the
Group and the Company by closely monitoring individual
exposure.

The main risks arising from the financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk. The management reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. No changes were made in the risk management
objectives, policies, processes and the methods used to
measure the risks during each of the years ended 31 March
2014 and 2013.

RZZE-—WF=A=1t—H8 AEEZXE
TR T ABRERBUIRN - 7] & & H b B UK
B BEeRBOTEX BAKRR - ETHM
BNFBAREARE ARARZEEEHMT
BB ERY (AR BB 5 3RIE R T
He ARERARBHEEMZTEEREE
REafE wmER (BN EEZRER &
AHEERE -R-T—=F=A=+t—8H"
AEEZEBRTANBREERRITER -

AEBRARRZIEZERREEERAER
EEESRMSIARAEEEAZEAR - &
FEBRIARRER LESNEE AR R
BRALRTBRRN L EE -

REEEE AEBRAAABEEBLL
SRMIABEIRE -SEERNEBEY
£ 520 B BOR 2 5% 5 B K B B AR A
Az TRBE -

CMIEMELEZETEZRABAEERR &
FELRAR  FERRRKIINERR - SEE
EZHNTHEELEANLESERBRZEBEK B H
ERBROT REE-T—NFER_T—
=F=A=+—HIEFESF RKREEH
ZBUR - REERBRBREEFEAMELSD -
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is mainly arising from risk of default of
counterparties. The Group and the Company expose
to credit risk mainly from their financial assets with a
maximum exposure equal to their carrying amounts,
except for the Group’s cash balances of approximately
HK$118,000 (2013: HK$43,000).

The objective of the Group and the Company is to
manage the adverse effect bring about by the risk of
potential default or delay in payments. It is the
Group's and the Company's policy that they trade
only with recognised and creditworthy counterparties
and they are subject to credit verification procedures.
The management monitors such exposures on an
ongoing basis mainly by control over credit limits and
terms by reference to their history of repayment and
default.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.
Save as those disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements, there are no financial assets that are past
due but not impaired. The financial assets included
thereof relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to
meet all contractual financial commitments as they fall
due. The objective of the Group and the Company is,
through prudent treasury policy to monitor liquidity
ratios against risk limits with a contingency plan for
funding, to ensure the Group and the Company has
sufficient funding for operation needs. The management
manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. MAERERREREB R &K (#)
Policies (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) KBHESRER (R
The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s RMBEER  REBREAATBREELD
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting KAMBENAFE v emaBEZ I B R
period based on the contractual undiscounted mr

payments is as follows:

Group
rEE
Total Total
undiscounted undiscounted
cash flows cash flows
on demand Total on demand Total
orless than  carrying or less than carrying
12 months amount 12 months amount
RERR RER
PR+=@EA PR+ 18R
THHRFTE REE ITHRITR REE
ReRERE wE HenELs BE
2014 2014 2013 2013
“E-NEF Z2-WmF T —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER FHAT FAT
Trade payables JEf BR K 9,952 9,952 12,634 12,634
Financial liabilities included in - &+ A K fth & < 2008 2

other payables and accruals Bt FIEZ @8 &

(note 24) (Mi7E24) 8,988 8,988 6,296 6,296
Due to Directors ENEEZHAE 535 535 — —
Interest-bearing bank FFESRIEER

borrowing — — 11,400 11,400

19,475 19,475 30,330 30,330
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)
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(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) KBHESER (K
Company
b /NG|
Total Total
undiscounted undiscounted
cash flows cash flows
on demand Total on demand Total
orless than  carrying or less than carrying
12 months amount 12 months amount
REXRT BEk
PR+=@EA PRTZ@A
XAAHRFTR REE ITOHRTER REE
ReREansE #HwE LBensRs B
2014 2014 2013 2013
—E2-NE —F-NEF —E—=F ZF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FHET FHET
Financial liabilities included s+ ARMB AR Z &
in investments in Zemas
subsidiaries (note 15) (Mi3E15) 1,828 1,828 1,814 1,814
Financial liabilities included in &t A K fh & {5 30 1B &2
other payables and accruals Bt ZEZ SR EE
(note 24) (Mr3E24) 1,600 1,600 1,292 1,292
3,428 3,428 3,106 3,106
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

()

(d)

Interest rate risk

At 31 March 2014, the Group and the Company are
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
its floating rate bank deposits. In addition, at 31 March
2013, the Group was exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to its variable-rate bank borrowing
(see note 25 for details of bank borrowing). Such bank
loan was fully repaid in the year ended 31 March
2014. The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are largely independent of changes in market interest
rates.

Objective of the Group and the Company is to
manage its interest cost by a combination of fixed
and variable rate financial instruments. Currently,
there is no interest rate hedging policy. However, to
monitor the interest rate exposures, the management
will consider hedging in case of significant interest
rate exposure.

Group

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk is minimal as the Group does not have any
significant interest bearing financial assets/liabilities
and therefore no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Company

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Company’s exposure
to interest rate risk is minimal as the Company does
not have any significant interest bearing financial
assets/liabilities and therefore no sensitivity analysis
is presented.

Foreign currency risk

Group

The Group's trading transactions, monetary assets
and liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB and
Hong Kong dollars. As the foreign currency risks
generated from the sales and cost of sales can be set
off with each other, the impact of foreign exchange
exposure to the Group was not material. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to
protect against the volatility associated with foreign
currency transactions and other financial assets and
liabilities created in the ordinary course of business.
The majorities of the Group’s operating assets are
located in Mainland China and are denominated in
RMB.
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33. HBEREEBZRER @)
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and B R b B IR B AR R (|)
Policies (continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) (d) HPEmEBE (#)
Sensitivity analysis HEED T
The Group has no significant direct exposure to HRAEBARSIEERS BENE

foreign currencies as most of the commercial
transaction, assets and liabilities are denominated in
a currency as a functional currency of each entry of
the Company.

Company
The Company has no exposure to significant risk
resulting from change in foreign currency rates.

In the opinion of the Directors, since the Company’s
foreign currency risk is minimal, no sensitivity analysis
is presented.

34. Capital Management

The primary objectives of capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
management may make adjustments on the dividend policy
or capital structure policy in light of changes in conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

34.
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34.

35.

36.

3

Capital Management (continued)

Capital of the Group consists of equity of the Group. The
Group also monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total bank borrowings divided by total equity (including
capital and reserves). The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:
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34.

BEREIR (@)

REBZERABRAEE 2R - AEER
REERGLREREEABER EERARE
HERZBITEELERAERAE (BFEER
NiE#H) A8 RBmEPRZEERBEL XN
T

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHET
Interest-bearing bank borrowing SEIRITEE — 11,400
Total equity R B 10,816 49,475
Gearing ratio EEAMBLE N/A 23%

T E A
Contingent Liabilities 35 ANAE

The Group and the Company had no significant contingent
liabilities at 31 March 2014 (2013: nil).

Event after the Reporting Period

The Group and the Company had no significant events
subsequent to 31 March 2014 (2013: nil).

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 23 June 2014.

36.
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